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Independent auditors' report

To the shareholders of
Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment - KPSC
Kuwait

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Arzan Financial Group for Financing and
Investment - KPSC (“Parent Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group™), which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted for use in the State of Kuwait.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Awditors’ Responsibilities for the Aundit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code),
and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below as the key
audit matters.

Valuation of Available for Sale Investments

The Group’s available for sale investments represent 52% of the total assets. Due to their unique structure
and terms, the valuation of these instruments is based either on external independent valuations or on entity-
developed internal models and not on quoted prices in active markets. Therefore, there is significant
measurement uncertainty involved in this valuation. As a result, the valuation of these instruments was
significant to our audit. We have, therefore, spent significant audit efforts in assessing the appropriateness of

the valuations and underlying assumptions. The Group’s disclosures about its available for sale investments
are included in Note 17 and 34.2.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders of Arzan Financial Group for Financing
and Investment - KPSC (continued)

Valuation of Available for Sale Investments (continued)

Our audit procedures included agreeing carrying value of the unquoted investments to the Group’s internal
or external valuations prepared using valuation techniques, assessing and challenging the appropriateness of
estimates, assumptions and valuation methodology and obtained supporting documentation and explanations
to corroborate the valuations.

Equity Method of Acconnting

The Group has interests in number of associates which are significant to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. The Group exercises significant influence over its associates and consequently accounts for under
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the Group’s interests in the associates are initially
stated at cost, and are adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition changes in Group’s share of the net assets
of the associates less any impairment. The geographically dispersed structure increases the complexity of the
Group’s control environment and our ability as Group’s auditors to obtain an approprate level of
understanding of these entities including any related party transactions. Due to these factors and the
significance of the investment in associates to the Group’s consolidated financial statements we consider this
as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included, among others, determining the nature and extent of audit procedures to be
carried out for associates and selecting significant associates based on the size and/or sk profile of these
entities. During our audit we considered the geographical diversity of Group’s structure and communicated
with the component auditors. We also provided detailed instructions to the component auditors covering the
significant areas and risks to be addressed including the identification of related parties and transactions.
Furthermore, we evaluated the Group’s methodology and testing of the key assumptions used by the Group
in determining the associates’ recoverable amount based on value-in-use. We also assessed the adequacy of
the Group’s disclosures in notes 4.10 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Other information included in the Group’s 2016 Annual Report

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information consists of the information included
in the Group’s 2016 Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statemnents and our auditors’ report
thereon. We obtained the report of the Parent Company’s Board of Directors, prior to the date of our
auditors’ report, and we expect to obtain the remaining sections of the Annual Report after the date of our
auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that
we obtained prior to the date of this auditors’ report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted for use in the State of Kuwait, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders of Arzan Financial Group for Financing
and Investment - KPSC (continued)

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and petform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders of Arzan Financial Group for Financing
and Investment - KPSC (continued)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Furthermore, in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Parent Company and the
consolidated financial statements, together with the contents of the report of the Parent Company’s board of
directors relating to these consolidated financial statements, are in accordance therewith. We further report
that we obtained all the information and explanations that we required for the purpose of our audit and that
the consolidated financial statements incorporate all information that is required by the Companies Law No.
1 of 2016 and its Executive Regulations, as amended, and by the Parent Company’s Memorandum of
Incorporation and Articles of Association, as amended, that an inventory was duly carried out and that, to the
best of our knowledge and belief, no violations of the Companies Law, the Executive Regulations, or of the
Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of Association, as amended, have occurred
during the year ended 31 December 2016 that might have had a material effect on the business or financial
position of the Parent Company.

We further report that, during the course of our audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we have
not become aware of any material violations of the provisions of Law 7 of 2010, as amended, relating to the
Capital Markets Authority and its related regulations during the year ended 31 December 2016 that might
have had a material effect on the business or financial position of the Parent Company.

We further report that, during the course of our audit, we have not become aware, of any material violations
of the provisions of Law No. 32 of 1968, as amended, concerning currency, the Central Bank of Kuwait and
the organisation of the banking business, and its related regulations during the year ended 31 December 2016
that might have had a material effect on the business or financial position of the Parent Company.
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Anwar Y. Al-Qatami, F.C.C.A. Al A. Al-Hasawi
(Licence No. 50-A) (Licence No. 30-A)
of Grant Thornton — Al-Qatami, Al-Aiban & Partners of Rédl Middle East

Burgan — International Accountants

Kuwait
30 March 2017



Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment - KPSC
and its Subsidiaries

Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2016

Consolidated statement of profit or loss

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
Notes 2016 2015
KD KD
Revenue
Income from instalment credit debtors 7 1,882,075 2,877,350
Rental income 174,118 175,179
Interest income 504,489 253,066
Gain on sale of investments at fair value through profit or loss 1,914 17,584
Change in fair value of investments at fair value through profit or loss (1,911) (954,137)
Gain/(loss) on sale of available for sale investments 15,688 (357,943)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries - (102,494)
Share of results of associates 2,060,089 1,377,871
Dividend income 8 2,891,755 2,705,198
Brokerage income 391,770 535,135
Advisory fees 2,139,853 1,486,759
Loss on foreign currency exchange (669,381) (124,281)
Other income 459,400 364,854
9,849,859 8,254,141
Expenses and other charges
Staff costs (2,533,815) (2,601,604)
General and administrative expenses (1,330,112) (1,514,648)
Finance costs 9 (1,432,404) (1,016,472)
Depreciation (293,562) (290,332)
Provision for instalment credit debtors 13 (288,524) (549,168)
Impairment of available for sale investments 17 (1,221,913) (7,267,257)
Impairment of investment in real estate under development 19 (134,161) (657,270)
(7,234,491) (13,896,751)
Profit/(loss) for the year before provision for National Labour
Support Tax 2,615,368 (5,642,610)
Provision for National Labour Support Tax (NLST) (18,924) -
Profit/(loss)for the year 2,596,444 (5,642,610)
Attributable to:
Shareholders of the parent company 671,417 (6,998,370)
Non-controlling interests 1,925,027 1,355,760
Profit/(loss) for the year 2,596,444 (5,642,610)
Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share attributable to the
shareholders of the parent company (Fils) 10 0.843 (8.783)

The notes set ont on pages 12 to 69 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment - KPSC
and its Subsidiaries

Consclidated Financial Statemenis

31 December 2016

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.

2016 2015

KD KD
Profit/(loss) for the year 2,596,444 (5,642,610)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income:
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to consolidated statement of profit

or loss:

Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations (3,994,298) (730,177)
Available for sale investments:
- Net change in fair value arising during the year (707,834) (3,707,557)
- Transferred to consolidated statement of profit or loss on sale (18,392) (191,218)
- Transferred to consolidated statement of profit or loss on impairment 1,221,913 7,267,257
Total other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (3,498,611) 2,638,305
Total comprehensive loss for the year (902,167) (3,004,305)
Attributable to:
Shareholders of the parent company 247,882 (3,825,089)
Non-controlling interests (1,150,049) 820,784
Total comprehensive loss for the year (902,167) (3,004,305)

The notes set ont on pages 12 1o 69 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment - KPSC

and its Subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2016

Consolidated statement of financial position

Notes 31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 12 10,103,929 7,307,640
Instalment credit debtors 13 11,118,653 13,494,741
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 14 6,814,873 6,720,274
Accounts receivable and other assets 15 5,821,949 6,780,171
Due from related parties 32 1,104,711 676,801
Properties held for trading 16 1,313,947 1,313,947
Available for sale investments 17 98,812,690 91,673,129
Investment in associates 18 47,347,791 50,604,203
Investment in real estate under development 19 4,180,940 4,108,650
Investment properties 20 1,772,684 1,832,060
Property and equipment 21 3217772 3,396,711
Total assets 191,609,939 187,808,327
Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
Due to banks 22 3,847,752 1,661,901
Accounts payable and other liabilities 23 7,092,993 7,814,601
Due to related parties 32 191,888 295,257
Term loans 24 18,730,000 12,770,000
Murabaha payable 25 8,085,878 10,823,538
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 925,579 805,014
Total liabilities 38,874,090 34,170,311
Equity
Share capital 26 80,288,257 80,288,257
Share premium 26 23,803,273 27,142,826
Treasury shares 27 (559,233) (559,233)
Legal reserve 28 69,034 375,497
Voluntary reserve 28 69,034 375,497
Foreign currency translation reserve (1,101,7086) (182,484)
Fair value reserve 6,048,357 5,652,670
(Accumulated losses)/retained earnings 580,940 (4,090,547)
Total equity attributable to the shareholders of the

parent company 109,197,956 108,902,483
Non-controlling interests 43,537,893 44,735,533
Total equity 152,735,849 153,638,016
Total liabilities and equity 191,609,939 187,808,327

)

Jassem Hasan Zainal
Acting Chairman

The notes setf ont on pages 12 to 69 form an integral part of these consolidated financial staterments.
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Lrzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment - KIPSC 10
and its Subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2016
Consolidated statement of cash flows
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
Notes 2018 2015

KD KD
QPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit / (L.oss) for the year 2,596,444 (5,642,610}
Adjustments:
Interest income (504,489) (253,086)
Dividend income 8 (2,891,755} (2,705,198)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries - 102,494
Impairment of available sale investments 17 1,221,913 7,267,257
impairment of investment in real estate under development 134,161 857,270
Gain/{loss) on sale of available for sale investments (15,688) 357,943
Share of results of associates 18 (2,060,089) (1,377,871)
Provisicon for instalment credit debtors 288,524 549,168
Finance costs 1,432,404 1,016,472
Depreciation 293,562 290,332
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 285,556 256,986

780,543 519,177
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
instalment credit debtors 2,087,564 505,989
Investments at fair value through profit or loss (94,599) (1,079,521)
Accounts receivable and other assets 824,063 (3,402,726)
Due from / to related parties (531,279) 195,032
Accounts payable and other liabilities (721,610) 694,699
Employees' end of service benefits paid (88,645} {173,404)
Net cash from/{used in) operating activities 2,256,037 (2,739,854)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipment 21 {139,708) (472,270}
Purchase of available for sale investments 17 (27,760,164) {23,357,632)
Proceeds from sale of available for sale investments 19,810,065 14,572,261
Additions on real estate portfolio (206,451} -
Dividend income received 2,891,755 2,705,198
Dividend from associate 18 1,968,125 1,586,731
Interest income received 504,489 253,066
Net cash used in investing activities (2,941,889) (4,702 646)




Arzan Financial Group for Financing and investment - KESC 1
and its Subsidiaries

Gonsolidated Financis! Statements

31 December 2016

Consolidated statement of cash flows {continued)

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
Notes 2016 2015
KD KD
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net change in due to banks 2,185,851 (1,021,347)
Net increase in term loans 5,960,000 1,110,000
Murabaha (repaid) / obtained (2,737,680) 5,623,638
Purchase of freasury shares . {2,163)
{Payments) / Proceeds from acquisition / disposal of partial interests
in subsidiaries {387,543) 749,009
Finance costs paid (1,432,404) (1,016,472)
Net cash from financing activities 3,588,244 5,442,575
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,902,392 (1,999,0256)
Foreign currency adjustment {106,103} {259,080)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 12 7,307,640 0,566,645
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 12 10,103,928 7,307,640
Non-cash transaction:
Investment in real estate under development - 4,765,920
Accounts receivable and other assets - (2,165,920}
Investment in associates - (2,600,000}

The notes set out on pages 12 10 69 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 incorporation and activities

Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment — KPSC {the “parent company™) was incorporated in
Kuwait on 15 April 1980 in accordance with the Companies Law under the name of International Transport
Equipment Company - KSC (Closed). On 14 December 1996 an extraordinary general assembly resolved to
change the name of the parent company to International Murabaha Company — KSC (Closed). Later, on 24
April 2002 an extraordinary general assembly resolved to change the name of the parent company to
International Finance Company — KPSC and to expand its permitted activities.

The extraordinary general assembly held on 24 july 2013 approved to change the name of the parent
company from International Finance Company — KSCC to Arzan Financial Group for Financing and
Investment — KPSC which has been registered in the commercial register under No. 29629 on 11 November
2013.

The patent company is listed on the Kuwait Stock Exchange and is governed under the directives of Central
Bank of Kuwait and Capital Markets Authority.

The group comprises the parent company and its subsidiaries {together referred as “the group™).
The details of the subsidiaries are noted in note (0).
The parent company’s objectives are as follows:

- Invest in various economic scctors through the incorporation or participation in the incorporation of
various companies or institutions practicing similar or complementary activities to the company’s
objectives for its account and for the account of third parties inside or outside the State of Kuwait.

- Manage local or foreign various companies and institutions and market the investment setvices and
products owned by them or by third patties inside or cutside the State of I{uwait.

- Own and acquire the right of disposal of whatever it deems necessary thereto of movable and
immovable property or any parts thereof or any franchising rights the company deems they are
necessary or appropriate to the nature of its activity or to the development of its funds, excluding
trading in goods for its account.

- Conduct all business related to securities trading for its account and for the account of third parties
mnside or outside the State of Kuwait, including sale, purchase and marketing of securities of shares
and sukuks and other securities issued by local and foreign government and private companies,
institutions and bodies and practice the related financial mediation and brokerage activities.

- Manage the funds of individuals and local or foreign public and private companies, institutions and
bodies and invest these funds in various economic sectors through investment and seal estate
portfolios inside or cutside the State of Kuwait,

- Provide economic advice related to investment and hold courses, issue brochures of various
investment activities for individuals, local and foreign companies and institutions.

- Prepate and provide technical, economic and assessment studies and consultations and prepare
feasibility studies for various investment activities and other studies, examining the technical,
financial and administrative aspects related to these activities for its account or for the account of
third parties inside or outside the State of Kuwait.
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1 Iincorporation and activities (continued)

- Establish and manage the collective investment systems and local and foreign investment funds of all
kinds and contribute to their establishment for the account of the company and for the account of
third parties in accordance with the regulating laws, rules and conditions specified by the competent
regulatory authorities; put its stakes or units to subscription so that the company’s contributions to
the share capital of the collective investment system or the investment fund shall not be less than the
minimum limit specified by the regulatory authorities; scll or purchase stakes or units in the local or
foreign collective investment systems or investment funds for its account and for the account of
third parties or market same, provided the necessary approvals are obtained from the competent
regulatory authorities; act as investment custodian, investment monitor and investment advisor in
general for the investment funds inside or outside the State of Kuwait in accordance with the
regulating laws.

- Invest funds for its account and for the account of third parties in the various aspects of investment
inside or outside the State of Kuwait and acquire movable and immovable assets.

- Act as the issuance manager for the securities issued by the local and foreign government and private
companies, institutions and bodies and act as the subscription agent, listing advisor, investment
custodian and monitor, including publications management and commitments of subscgption
operations management, receiving applications and covering subscription thereto.

- Perform ali advisory services that help develop and strengthen the ability of financial and monetary
market in the State of ICuwait and meet its requirements within the limits of the law and the decisions
or instructions issued by the competent regulatory authorities (after obtaining the necessary
approvals from those authorities), provided this does not result in granting funding by the company
in any way.

- Mediate in financing operations, structure and manage the financing atrangements of the local and
international companies, institutions, bodies and projects i the various economic sectors in
accordance with the rules and conditions specified by the competent regulatory authorities.

- Carry out all the works related to the activities for the arrangement and management of
consolidation, acquisition and separation operations for the local and foreign government and private
compariies, institutions and bodies.

- Trade in transportation means and related heavy equipment.

- Finance the purchases of capital goods, durable and non-durable goods.

- Lease capital and durable goods.

- Grant short and medium term loans to natural and judicial persons.

- Perform real estate investment operations aiming at the management and development of residential
lands and building of residential and commercial units and complexes for the purpose of selling them
in cash or on installments or leasing same.

- Manage ali kinds of financial portfolios, invest and develop funds by employing them locally and
internationally for the account of the company or for the account of its clients, in addition to lending
and borrowing operations.
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1 Incorporation and activities (continued)

- Mediate in the operations of lending, borrowing, brokerage and warrantees against commission or
pay.

- Finance and mediate in international and local trade operations.

- Manage and create mutual investment funds according to the law and after approval by the
competent authorities.

- Mediate in investment in the international instruments and securities.

- Invest in real estate, industrial and agricultural sectors and other econoemic sectors, whether directly
or through contribution to the incogporation of specialized companies or purchase of the shares of
these companies.

= Sell and purchase foreign currencies and trade in precious metals only for the account of the
company.

- Conduct researches and studies for private and public real estate projects and for the employment of
funds for its account or for the account of third pasties.

- 'Trade in securities such as shares and investment certificates and the like.

The company may have an interest or participate in any aspect with the companies, institutions and bodies
performing similar works or which might assist it in the achievement of its objectives in Kuwait ot abroad.
The company may also open branches inside and outside the State of Kuwait in sach a way that does not
contradict with the company’s law and the instructions of the competent regulatory authorities.

The new Companies Law No. 1 of 2016 was issued on 24 January 2016 and was published in the Official
Gazette on 1 February 2016 which cancelled the Companies Law No 25 of 2012, and its amendments.
According to article No. 5, the new Law will be effective retrospectively from 26 November 2012, The new
Executive Regulations of Law No. 1 of 2016 was issued on 12 July 2016 and was published in the Official
Gazette on 17 July 2016 which cancelled the Executive Regulations of Law No. 25 of 2012,

On 30 June 2016, the parent company’s board of directors held a meeting and decided to separate the powers
of the chief executive officer and the chairman of the company in accordance with the Companies Law
requirements, where as Mr. Jassem Hasan Zainal will be acting chairman of the company. Subsequent to date
of the consolidated statement of financial position, the Parent Company’s board of directors elected a
chairman and vice chairman.

The address of the parent company’s registered office is PO Box 26442, Safat 13125, State of Kuwait.

The parent company’s board of directors approved these consolidated financial statements for issue on
30 March 2017, The general assembly of the parent company’s shareholders has the power to amend these
consclidated financiat statements after issuance,

2 Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Internationat Financial
Reporting Standards (“TFRS”) promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), and
Interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC™) of the
IASB, as modified for use by the Government of uwait for financial services institutions regulated by the
Central Bank of Kuwait. These regulations require adoption of all IFRSs except for the IAS 39 requirement
for collective impairment provision, which has been replaced by the Central Bank of Kuwait requirement for
a minimum general provision of 1% for cash facilities and 0.5% for non-cash facilities. These rates are to be
applied effective from 1 January 2007 on the net increase in facilities, net of certain restricted categories of
collateral, during the reporting period.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

3

3.1

Changes in accounting policies

New and amended standards adopted by the group

A number of new and revised standards are effective for annual pegiods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
which have been adopted by the group but did not have any significant impact on the consolidated financial
position or the results for the year. Information on these new standards is presented below:

Standard or Interpretation Effestive jor annual periody beginning
IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations -

Amendments 1 January 2016

IAS 1 'Disclosure Initiative - Amendments 1 January 2016

IAS 16 and IAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of

Depreciation and Amortisation - Amendments 1 January 2016

TAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements - Amendments 1 January 2016

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 Iavestment Entities: Applying the

Consolidation Exception - Amendments 1 January 2016

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012--2014 Cycle 1 January 2016

IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations - Amendments

Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements require an acquirer of an interest in a joint operation in which
the activity constitutes z business (as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations) to apply all of the business
combinations accounting principles in JFRS 3 and other IFRSs, except for those principles that conflict with
the guidance in IFRS 11. Tt also requires disclosure of the information required by IFRS 3 and other IIFRSs
for business combinations.

The amendments apply both to the initial acquisition of an interest in joint operation, and the acquisition of
an additional interest in a joint operation {in the latter case, previously held interests are not remeasured).
The amendments apply prospectively to acquisitions of interests in joint operations.

IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative — Amendments
The Amendments to IAS 1 make the following changes:

Materiality. The amendments clarify that (1) information should not be obscured by aggregating or by
providing immaterial information, (2) materiality considerations apply to the all parts of the financial
staternents, and (3) even when a standard requires a specific disclosure, materiality considerations do
apply.

Statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprebensive income: The amendments (1)
introduce a clarification that the list of line items to be presented in these statements can be
disaggregated and aggregated as relevant and additional guidance on subtotals in these statements and
(2) clarify that an entity's share of OCI of equity-accounted associates and joint ventures should be
presented in aggregate as single line itemns based on whether or not it will subsequently be reclassified
to profit or foss.

Notei: The amendments add additional examples of possible ways of ordering the notes to clarify that
understandability and comparability should be considered when determining the order of the notes
and to demonstrate that the notes need not be presented in the order so far listed in paragraph 114
of TAS 1. The IASB also removed guidance and examples with regard to the identification of
significant accounting policies that were perceived as being potentially unhelpful.
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3 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
31 New and amended standards adopted by the group (continued)

IAS 16 and IAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation -
Amendments
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible Assets address the following
matters:
* a depreciation method that is based on revenue that is generated by an activity that includes the use
of an asset is not appropriate for property, plant and equipment
¢ an amortisation method that is based on the revenue generated by an activity that includes the use of
an Intangible asset 15 gencerally inappropriate except for limited circumstances
s cxpected future reductions in the selling price of an item that was produced using an asset could
indicate the expectation of technological or commercial obsolescence of the asset, which, in tuen,
might reflect a reduction of the future econornic benefits embodied in the asset.

IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements - Amendments
The Amendments to TAS 27 Separate Financial Statements permit investments in subsidiaties, joint ventures
and associates to be optionally accounted for using the equity method in separate financial statements.

{FRS 10, IFRS 12 and JAS 28 'Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception -
Amendments
The Amendments are aimed at clarifying the following aspects:

o Dixemption from preparing consolidated financial statements. The amendments confirm that the exemption
from preparing consolidated financial statements for an intermediate parent entity is available to a
parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity, even if the investment entity measures all of
its subsidiaries at fair value, '

o A subiidiary providing services that relate to the parent's investment activities. A subsidiary that provides services
related to the parent's investment activities should not be consolidated if the subsidiary itself is an
investment entity,

o Application of the equity method by a non-investment enlity investor to an investment entity investee, When applying
the equity method to an associate or a joint venture, a nofn-investment entity investor in an
investment entity may retain the fair value measurement applied by the associate ot joint venture to
its interests in subsidiaties.

o Disclosures reguired. An investment entity measuring all of its subsidiaries at fair value provides the
disclosures relating to investment entities required by IFRS 12.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

(1) Amendments to TFRS 5 - Adds specific guidance in IFRS 5 for cases in which an entity reclassifies an asset
from held for sale to held for disttibution or vice versa and cases in which held-for-distribution accounting is
discontinued

@) Amendments 1o IFRS 7 - Additional guidance to clarify whether a servicing contract is continuing

involvement in a transferred asset, and clarification on offsetting disclosures in condensed intetim financial
statements

(i) Amendments fo LS 34 - Clarify the meaning of 'elsewhere in the interim report’ and require a cross-
reference
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

3 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

3.2 TASB Standards issued but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial statements, certain new standards, amendments
and interpretations to existing standards have been published by the IASB but are not yet effective, and have

not been adopted early by the group.

Management anticipates that all of the relevant pronouncements will be adopted in the group’s accounting
policies for the first period beginning after the effective date of the pronouncements, Information on new
standards, amendments and interpretations that are expected to be relevant to the group’s consolidated
financial statements is provided below. Certain other new standards and interpretations have been issued but
are not expected to have a material impact on the group’s consolidated financial statements.

Standard or Interpretation

Eiffective for annnal periods bepinning

IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows- Amendments
IAS 12 Income Taxes - Amendments

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between and an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture - Amendments

IFRS 4 and IFRS 9 - Amendments

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customets

IFRS 16 Leases

TAS 40 Investment Property - Amendments

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

ITAS 7 Staternent of Cash Flows- Amendments

1 January 2017
1 January 2017

No stated date
1 January 2018
1 January 2018
1 January 2018
1 January 2019
 January 2018
1 January 2017 and 2018
I January 2018

The Amendments are designed to improve the quality of information provided to users of financial
statements about changes in an entity’s debt and related cash flows {and noncash changes)

The Amendments:

¢ require an entity to provide disclosures that enable usets to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities. An entity applies its judgment when determining the exact form and content of

the disclosures needed to satisfy this requirement

* suggest a number of specific disclosures that may be necessary in order to satisfy the above

requirement, including:

o changes in liabilities arising from financing activities caused by changes in financing cash
flows, foreign exchange rates or fair values, or obtaining or losing control of subsidiaties or

other businesses

o a reconciliation of the opening and closing balances of liabilities arising from financing
activities i the statement of financial position including those changes identified

immediately albove.
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3 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

3.2 IASB Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

IAS 12 Income Taxes - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses - Amendments
The Amendments to IAS 12make the following changes:

*  Unrealised losses on debt instruments measured at fair value and measured at cost for tax purposes
give rise to a deductible temporary difference regardless of whether the debt instrument's holder
expects to recover the carrying amount of the debt instrument by sale or by use.

¢ The carrying amount of an asset does not limit the estimation of probable future taxable profits.

e LDstimates for future taxable profits exclude tax deductions resulting from the reversal of deductible
temporary differences.

*  An entity assesses a deferred tax asset in combination with other deferred tax assets. Where tax law
restricts the utilisation of tax losses, an entity would assess a deferred tax asset in combination with
other deferred tax assets of the same type

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between and an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture - Amendments
The Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures (2011) clarify the treatment of the sale or contribution of assets from an investor to its
associate or joint venture, as follows:
* require full recognition in the investor's financial statements of gains and losses arising on the sale or
contribution of assets that constitute a business (as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations)
*  require the partial recognition of gains and losses where the assets do not constitute a business, i.e. a
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or
joint venture,

These requirements apply regardless of the legal form of the transaction, e.g. whether the sale or contribution
of assets occurs by an investor transferring shares in a subsidiary that holds the assets (resulting in loss of
control of the subsidiary), or by the direct sale of the assets themselves.

IASB has postponed the effective date indefinitely until other projects are completed. However, eatly
implementation is allowed.

IFRS 4 and IFRS 9 - Amendments
The Amendments provide entities that issuc insurance contracts with temporary accounting solutions for the
practical challenges of implementing IFRS 9 before the forthcoming new Insurance Contracts Standard.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The TASB published IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ (2014), representing the completion of its project to
replace IAS 39 ‘Tinancial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’. The new standard introduces
extensive changes to 1AS 39s guidance on the classification and measurement of financial assets and
introduces a new ‘expected credit loss” model for the impairment of financial assets. IFRS 9 also provides
new guidance on the application of hedge accounting,

Management has started to assess the impact of IFRS 9 but is not yer in a position to provide quantified
information. At this stage the main areas of expected impact are as follows:
o the classification and measurement of the financial assets will need to be reviewed based on the new
criteria that considers the assets” contractual cash flows and the business model in which they are
managed.
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3 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
3.2 IASB Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

o an expected credit loss-based impairment will need to be recognised on the trade receivables and
investments in debt-type assets currently classified as available for sale and held-to-maturity, unless
classified as at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with the new criteria,

e it will no longer be possible to measure equity investments at cost less impairment and all such
investments will instead be measured at fair value, Changes in fair value will be presented in profit or
loss unless an irrevocable designation is made to present them in other comprehensive income.

e if the fair value option continues to be elected for certain financial liabilittes, fair value movements
will be presented in other comprehensive income to the extent those changes relate to own credit
risk.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 replaced TAS 18 “Revenues”, TAS 11 “Construction Contract” and several revenue — related
Interpretations and provides a new control-based revenue recognition model using five-step approach to all
conftracts with customers.

The five steps in the model are as follows:
¢ Identify the contract with the customer
* Identify the performance obligations in the contract
¢ Determine the transaction price
e Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contracts
s Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

The standard includes important guidance, such as
¢ Contracts involving the delivery of two or more goods or services — when to account separately for
the individual performance obligations in a multiple element arrangement, how to allocate the
transaction price, and when to combine contracts
¢ Timing — whether revenue is required to be recognized over time or at a single point in time
® Variable pricing and credit risk — addressing how to treat arrangements with variable or contingent
(e.g. performance-based) pricing, and introducing an overall constraint on revenue
Time value — when to adjust a contract price for a financing component
®  Specific issues, including —
o non-cash consideration and asset exchanges
contract costs
rights of return and other customer options
supplier repurchase options
warranties
principal versus agent
licencing
breakage
non-refundable upfront fees, and
consignment and bill-and-hold arrangements.

cC 00000000
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3 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
3.2 IASB Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 will replace IAS 17 and three related Interpretations. Leases will be recorded on the statement of
financial position i the form of a right-of-use asset and a lease liability.

Management is yet to fully assess the impact of the Standard and therefore is unable to provide quantified
information. However, in order to determine the impact, management is in the process of:
s  performing a full review of all agreements to assess whether any additional contracts will now
become a lease under IFRS 16%s new definition
¢ deciding which transitional provision to adopt; either full retrospective application or partial
retrospective application (which means comparatives do not need to be restated). The partial
application method also provides optional relief from reassessing whether contracts in place are, or
contain, a lease, as well as other reliefs. Deciding which of these practical expedients to adopt is
umportant as they are one-off choices
® assessing their current disclosures for finance and operating leases as these are likely to form the basis
of the amounts to be capitalised and become right-of-use assets
s determining which optional accounting simplifications apply to their lease portfolio and if they are
going to use these exemptions
¢ assessing the additional disclosures that will be required.

IFRS 40 Investment Property - Amendments

The Amendments to LAS 40 clarifies that transfers to, or from, investment property are required when, and
only when, there is a change in use of property supported by evidence. The amendments also re-characterise
the list of circumstances appearing in paragraph 57(a)—(d) as a non-exhaustive list of examples of evidence
that a change in use has occurred. The Board has also clarified that a change in management’s intent, by itself,
does not provide sufficient evidence that a change in use has occurred. Evidence of a change in use must be
observable,

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

() Awmendments to IFRS 12 -Clarifies the scope of IFRS 12 by specifying that its disclosure requirements
(except for those in IFRS 12.B17) apply to an entity's interests irrespective of whether they are classified (or
included in a disposal group that is classified) as held for sale or as discontinued operations in accordance
with IFRS 5. Amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or aftert January 2017.

(i) Awmendments to LAS 28 -Clarifies that a qualifving entity is able to choose between applying the equity
method or measuring an fvestment in an associate ot joint venture at fair value through profit or loss,
separately for each associate or joint ventute at initial recognition of the associate or joint venture
Amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or afterl January 2018.

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The Interpretations looks at what exchange rate to use for transiation when payments are made or received in
advance of the related asset, expense or income. A diversity was observed in practice in circumstances in
which an entity recognises a non-monetary liability arising from advance consideration. The diversity resulted
from the fact that some entities were recognising revenue using the spot exchange rate at the date of the
receipt of the advance consideration while others were using the spot exchange rate at the date that revenue
was recognized. IFRIC 22 addresses this issue by clarifying that the date of the transaction for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (ot part of
it) is the date on which an entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the payment or receipt of advance consideration.
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4 Significant accounting policies
The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
set out below.

4.1 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Kuowaiti Dinars (“IKID”) which is the functional
currency of the parent company and are prepared under the historical cost convention, except for certain
investments at fair value through profit ot loss and available for sale investrnents that are measured at fair
value,

The group has elected to present the “statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income” in two
statements: the “statement of profit or loss” and “statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income”.

4.2 Basis of consolidation

The parent controls a subsidiary if it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the subsidiary and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the subsidiary. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for reporting dates which are typically not more than three
months from that of the parent company, using consistent accounting policies. Adjustments are made for the
effect of any significant transactions or events that occur between that date and the reporting date of the
parent company’s financial statements.

All transactions and balances between group companies are eliminated on consolidation, including unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between group companies, Whete unrealised losses on intra-group asset sales
are reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested for impairment from a group perspective.
Amounts reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to ensure
consistency with the accounting policies adopted by the group.

Profit or loss and other comprehensive income of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of duting the year are
recognised from the effective date of acquisition, or up to the effective date of disposal, as applicable.

Non-controlling interests, presented as part of equity, represent the portion of a subsidiary’s profit or loss and
net assets that is not held by the group. The group attributes total comprehensive income or loss of
subsidiaries between the owners of the parent and the non-controlling interests based on their respective
ownership interests,

When a controlling interest in the subsidiaries is disposed of, the difference between the selling ptice and the
net asset value plus cumulative translation difference and goodwill is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

4.3 Business combinations

The group applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations. The consideration
transferred by the group to obtain control of a subsidiary is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the group, which includes the
fair value of any asset or liability arising from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition costs are
expensed as incurred. For each business combination, the acquirer measutes the non-controlling interests in
the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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4 Significant accounting policies (continued)

4.3 Business combinations (continued)

The group recognises identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination regardless
of whether they have been previously recognised i the acquiree’s financial statements prior to the
acquisition. Assets acquired and liabilities assumed are generally measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

When the group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded detivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree,

Goodwill is stated after separate recognition of identifiable intangible assets. It is calculated as the excess of
the sum of a) fair value of consideration transferred, b) the recognised amount of any non controlling interest
in the acquiree and ¢) acquisiion-date fair value of any existing equity interest in the acquitee, over the
acquisition-date fair values of identifiable net assets. If the fair values of identifiable net assets exceed the sum
calculated above, the excess amount (e gain on a bargain purchase) is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss immediately.

4.4 Goodwill

Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising from a business combinatdon that are not
individually identified and separately recognised. Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.

4.5 Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the group and
the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when payment is made.

Revenue arises from rendering of services and is measured by reference to the fair value of consideration
received or receivable, excluding taxes, rebates, and trade discounts. The group applies the reveaue
recognition criteria set out below to each separately identifiable component of revenue.

4.5.1 Income from instalment credit debtors

Interest on instalment credit facilities is calculated at the time of a contract with the customer. The custotner
repays the total amount due (including interest) by equal instalments over the period of the contract. The
interest is allocated over the life of the agreement using the “effective interest” method. Interest relating to
outstanding instalments is considered as deferred income and is included in the consclidated statement of
financial position as a deduction from instalment credit debtots.

4.5.2 Interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

453 Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of the rental contracts.

4.5.4 Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

4.5.5 Fee income from providing transaction services

Fees arising for rendering specific advisory services, brokerage services, equity and debt placement
transactions for a third party or arising from negotiating or participating in the negotiation of a transaction for
2 third party are recognised on completion of the underlying transaction.
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4 Significant accounting policies (continued)

4.6 Operating expenses
Operating expenses are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss upon utilisation of the service
or at the date of their origin.

4.7 Finance costs
Finance costs are recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the outstanding balance of
borrowing payable and applicable interest rate.

Finance costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of an asset that necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Capitalisation of finance costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale are complete. Other finance costs are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

4.8 Taxation

4.8.1 National Labour Support Tax (NLST)

NLST is calculated in accordance with Law No. 19 of 2000 and the Minister of Finance Resolutions No. 24
of 2006 at 2.5% of taxable profit of the group attributable to the sharcholders of the parent company. As per
law, income from associates and subsidiaries, cash dividends from listed companies which are subjected to
NLST have to be deducted from the profit for the year

4.8.2 Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS)

The contribution to IKFAS is calculated at 1% of taxable profit of the group attributable to the shareholders
of the parent company in accordance with the modified calculation based on the Foundation’s Board of
Directors’ resolution, which states that income from associates and subsidiaries, Board of Directors’
remuneration, transfer to statutory reserve should be excluded from profit for the year when determining the
contribution,

483 Zakar

Contribution to Zakat is calculated at 1% of the profit of the group attributable to the shareholders of the
parent company in accordance with the Ministry of Finance resoluton No. 58/2007 effective from 10
December 2007,

Under the NLST and Zakat regulations, no carry forward of losses to the future years or any carry back to
prior years is permitted. '

4.9 Segment reporting

The group has four operating segments: instalment credit, investments, financial brokerage and real estate. In
identifying these operating segments, management generally follows the group’s service lines representing its
main products and services. Hach of these operating segments is managed separately as each requires
different approaches and other resources. All inter-segment transfers are carried out at arm’s length prices.

For management purposes, the group uses the same measurement policies as those used in its financial
statements. In addidon, assets or liabilities which are not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment are not aliocated to a segment.
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410 Investment in associates

An associate Is an entity over which the group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary not an
interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to patticipate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control ot joint control over those policies.

‘The group’s investment in associates is accounted for under the equity method of accounting, i.e. on the
statement of financial position at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the group’s shate of the net assets of
the associate, less any impairment and the consolidated statement of profit or loss reflects the group’s share
of the results of operations of associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent Habilities of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill.

The goodwill 1s included within the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment as part
of that investment. Any excess of the parent company's shate of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Distributions received from the associate reduce the carrying amount of the investment, Adjustments to the
carrying amount may also be necessary for changes in the group’s share in the associate atising from changes
in the associate’s equity. Changes in the group’s share in associate’s equity are recognised immediately in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

When the group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions with associate are eliminated to the extent of the group’s share in the
associate. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transactions provide evidence of impairment in the
asset transferred.

An assessment for impairment of investment in associates is petformed when there is an indication that the
asset has been impatred, or that impairment fosses recognised in prior years no longer exist.

‘The associate’s financial statements are prepared either to the parent company’s reporting date or to a date
not earlier than three months of the parent company’s reporting date using consistent accounting policies.
Where practicable, adjustments are made for the effect of significant transactions ot other events that
occurred between the reporting date of the associates and the parent company’s reporting date.

Uporn loss of significant influence over the associate, the group measures and recognises any retaining
investment at its fair value. Any differences between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of
significant influence and the fair value of the remaining investment and proceeds from disposal are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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4
4.11

4.11.1

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments

Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted by transactions costs,
except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which are measured initially at fair value.
Subsequent mezasurement of financial assets and financial Habilities are described below.

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of financial asset or part of group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

4.11.2

. rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired;
. the group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without matetial delay to a third party under a
‘pass through’ arrangement and either
(@)  the group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or
(b)  the group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all risks and rewards of the
asset but has transfetred control of the asset.

Where the group has transferred its rights to reccive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass- through arrangement and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, a new asset is tecognised to the extent of the
group’s continuing involvement in the asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the otiginal lability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following
categories upon initial recognition:

* foans and receivables

* financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

* available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets.

All financial assets except for those at FVTPL are subject to review for impairment at least at each
reporting date to identify whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. Different criteria to determine impairment are applied for each category
of financial assets, which are described below.

Loans and receivables

Loans and recetvables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment. Discounting is omitted wheze the
effect of discounting is immaterial,
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4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
411  Financial instruments (continued)
4.11.2  Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)

. Loans and receivables (continued)

Individually significant receivables are considered for impairment when they are past due or when other
objective evidence is received that a specific counterparty will default. Recetvables that are not considered to
be mndividually impaired are reviewed for impairment in groups, which are deterinined by reference to the
industry and region of a counterparty and other shared credit risk characteristics. The impairment loss
estimate is then based on recent historical counterparty default rates for each identified group.

The group categorises loans and recetvables into following categories:

- Cash and caih equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, balances with banks and other financial
mnstitations and short term deposits due within three months which are subject to an mnsignificant risk
of changes in value.

- Tustabment credit debtors

Instalment credit debtors are stated in the consolidated financial position at amortised cost, net of
specific and general provisions. Specific provisions are made to reduce impaired receivables to their
estimated recoverable amount and general provisions are made at a rate of 1% on instalment credit
debtors for which no specific provisions were made, to provide for losses known from expetience to
exist, but not yet specifically identifiable, in accordance with the Central Bank of IQuwait instructions
in that respect. The recoverable amounts are based on estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate on a portfolio basis for groups of similar debtors.

~ Acconnty veceivable and other assely
Accounts receivable and other assets are stated at original amount less allowance for any uncollectible
amounts. An estimate for doubtful debts is made when coliection of the full amount is no longer
probabie. Bad debts are written off as incurred

- Due from related parties
Due from related parties are financial assets originated by the group by providing money directly to
the borrower that have fixed or determinable payments and are not quoted in an active market.

. Financial assets at FVTPL

Classification of investments as financial assets at FVIPL depends on how management monitors the
performance of these investments, When they are not classified as held for trading but have readily available
reliable fair values and the changes in fair values are reported as part of consolidated statement of profit oe
loss in the management accounts, they are classified as desipnated at FVTPL upon initial recognition. Ail
derivative financial instruments fall into this category.

Assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognised in consolidated statement of
profit or loss. The fair values of financial assets in this category are determined by reference to active market
transactions or using a valuation technique whete no active market exists.
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4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
411  Financial instruments (continued)
4.11.2 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)

. AFS financial assets
AFS financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that ate either designated to this category ot do not
qualify for inclusion in any of the other categories of financial assets,

Financial assets whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost less impairment losses, if any.
Impairment charges are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss. All other AFS financial assets
are measured at fair value. Gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income and reported
within the fair value reserve within equity, except for impairment losses, and foreign exchange differences on
monetary assets, which are recognised in statement of profit or loss. When the asset is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income is
rectassified from the equity reserve to consolidated statement of profit or loss and presented as a
reclassification adjustment within other comprehensive income.

The group assesses at each reporting date whether thete is objective evidence that a financial asset available
for sale or a group of financial assets available for sale is impaired. In the case of equity investments classified
as financial assets available for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the equity investment below its cost. ‘Significant’ is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and ‘prolonged’ against the period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in other comprehensive incoine, except for financial assets that
are debt securities which are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss only if the reversal can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,

4.11.3 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial Habilities
The group’s financial liabilities include due to banks, accounts payable and other labilities, due to related
parties, term loans and murabaha payable.

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

. Financial liabilities other than at fair value through profit or loss
These are stated using effective interest rate method. Due to banks, accounts payable and other labilities, due
to related parties, term loans and murabaha payable are classified as financial liabilities other than at FVTPL.

Term loans and due fo banks

All term loans and due to banks are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate method (EIR) amortisation process.

Payables and other fiabilities
Payables and other liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services
received, whether billed or not.
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4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
411  Financial instruments (continued)

4.11.3 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities (continued)

° Financial liabilities other than at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Due to related parties
Due to related parties are financial liabilities arising in the normal courses of the business and are not quoted
In an active market.

Murababa payabie

Murabaha payable represents amounts payable on a deferred settlement basis for assets purchased under
murabaha arrangements, Murabaha payable is stated at the gross amount of the payable, net of deferred finance
cost, Deferred finance cost is expensed on a time apportionment basis taking into account the borrowing rate
atteibutable and the balance outstanding.

All the profit-related charges are included within finance costs.

4.12  Amortised cost of financial instruments

‘This ts computed using the effective interest method less any allowance for impairment. The calculation takes
into account any premium or discount on acquisidon and includes transaction costs and fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate.

4.13  Trade and settlement date accounting

All ‘regular way’ purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the
entity commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in
the market place.

414  Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement
of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

4.15  Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets at cach reporting date is determined
by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for Jong positions and ask price for
short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.

For financial instruments not traded in an active marker, the fair value is determined using apptoptiate
valuation techniques. Such techniques may include using recent arm’s length market transactions; reference to
the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis or
other valuation models.
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416  Impairment of financial assets

An assessment is made at each financial position date to determine whether there is objective evidence that a
specific financial asset or a group of financial assets may be impaired. If such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Impairment is determined as follows:

1) For assets carried at fair value, impairment is the difference between cost and fair value;

i)  For assets carried at cost, impairment is the difference between carrying value and the present
value of future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for 2 similar financial
asset; and

iify For assets carried at amortised cost, impairment is the difference between carrying amount and
the present value of future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Reversal of impairment losses recognised in prior years is recorded when there is an indication that the
impairment losses recognised for the financial asset no longer exist or have decreased and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised. Except for reversal of
impairment losses related to equity instruments classified as available for sale, all other impairment reversals
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss to the extent the carrying value of the asset does
not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date. Impairment reversals in respect of equity instruments
classified as available for sale are recognised in fair value reserve.

4.17  Impairment testing of goodwill and non-financial assets

For impairment assessment purposes, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely
independent cash inflows (cash generating units). As a resul, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level. Goodwill is allocated to those cash-gencrating
units that are expected to benefit from synergies of the related business combination and represent the lowest
level within the group at which management monitors goodwill,

Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated (determined by the group’s management as
equivalent to its operating segments) are tested for impairment at least annually.

All other individual assets or cash-generating units are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the cartying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. To
determine the value-in-use, management estimates expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit
and determines a suitable interest rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The data
used for impaisment testing procedures are directly linked to the group’s latest approved budger, adjusted as
necessary (o exclude the cffects of future reorpanisations and asset enhancements, Discount factors are
determined individually for each cash-generating unit and reflect management’s assessment of respective risk
profiles, such as market and asset-specific risks factors.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units reduce fitst the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to that
cash-generating unit. Any remaining impairment loss is chatged pro rata to the other assets in the cash-
generating unit. With the exception of goodwill, all assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an
impairment loss previously recognised may no longer exist. An impairment charge is reversed if the cash-
generating unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its cartying amount,
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418  Properties held for trading

Properties held for trading are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs are those expenses
incurred in bringing each property to its present condition including identifiable finance cost. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling price less any further costs expected to be incurred on completion and
disposal.

4.19  Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, and are accounted
for using the cost model. Investment properties are initially measured at cost, being the purchase price and
any directly atteibutable expenditure for a purchased investment property and cost at the date when
construction ot development is complete for a self constructed investment property.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investrment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. Gains and losses arising from the sale of investment properties are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The estimated useful life for the caleulation of depreciation, excluding land, is 25 years using straight line
method. The carrying amounts are reviewed at each reporting date on an individual basis to assess whether
they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Provision for impairment losses, if any, are made
where carrying values exceed the recoverable amount.

Transfers are made to or from mnvestment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from
investment property to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value
at the date of change in use. If owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the group
accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property and equipment up to the date
of change in use.

4.20  Property and equipment
Land is stated at cost less any impairment losses based upon the reposts of independent professional valuers.

Capital expenditure on assets in the course of construction are classified as assets under construction. Such
costs are subsequently charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss if the project is abandoned, o,
if the project is, completed, are capitalised and transferred to the appropriate property and equipment
category, from which time depreciation is charged using the rate applicable to the category concerned.
Interest incurred on funds specifically obrained to finance construction activities ate capitalised using the
actual interest rate incurred during construction.

Other property and equipment assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The group depreciates
these assefs using the straight-line method at rates estimated to fully depreciate the cost of the propetty and
equipment over their expected useful lives.

The useful life and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensute that the method and petiod of
depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits arising from items of property. In
the case of leaschold property, expected useful lives are determined by reference to comparable owned assets
or over the term of the lease, if shorter.

Material residual value estimates and estimates of useful life are updated as required, but at least annually.
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4.20  Property and equipment (continued)
When assets are sold or retired, their cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts and
any gain ot loss resulting from their disposal is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

4.21  Impairment testing of non financial assets

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. To
determine the value-in-use, management estimates expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit
and determines a suijtable interest rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The data
used for impairment testing procedures are directly linked to the group’s latest approved budget, adjusted as
necessary to exclude the effects of future reorganisations and asset enhancements. Discount factors are
determined individually for each cash-generating unit and reflect management’s assessment of respective risk
profiles, such as market and asset-specific risks factors,

Impairment losses for cash-generating units reduce first the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to that
cash-generating unit. Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in the cash-
generating unit. With the exception of goodwill, all assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an
impairment loss previously recognised may no longer exist. An impairment charge is reversed if the cash-
generating unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its carrying amount.

422 Provisions, contingent assets and contingent labilities

Provisions are recognised when the group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required from the group and amounts can
be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the
most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the
present obligation. Where there is a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be
required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. Provisions are
discounted to their present values, where the tme value of money is material.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements, but are disclosed when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position, but are disclosed
unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

4.23  Equity, reserves and dividend payments
Shate capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued and paid up.

Shate premium includes any premiums received on issuc of share capital. Any transaction costs associated
with the issuing of shares are deducted from share premium,

Legal and voluntary reserves comptise appropriations of cutrent and prior period profits in accordance with
the requirements of the Companies” Law and the parent company’s memorandum of incorporation and
articles of association, as amended.
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4.23  Equity, reserves and dividend payments (continued)
Other components of equity include the following:
- Poreign currency translation reserve — comprises foreign currency translation differences arising
from the translation of financial statements of the group’s foteign entities into KD.
- Fair value reserve — comprises valuation gains and losses relating to available for sale financiat
assets.

Retained earnings include all current and prior period retained profits and losses.
All transactions with owners are recorded separately within equity.

Dividend distributions payable to sharcholders are included in other liabilities when the dividends have been
approved in a general meeting,

424  Treasury shares

Treasury shares consist of the parent company’s own issued shares that have been reacquired by the group
and not yet reissued or cancelled. Freasury shates are accounted for under cost method. Under this method,
the weighted average cost of the shares reacquired is charged to a contra account in equity. Treasury shares
are not entitled to cash dividends that the group may distribute. The issue of stock dividend shares increases
the number of treasury shares proportionately and reduces the average cost per share without affecting the
total cost of treasury shares.

When the treasury shares are reissued, gains are recorded directly in “treasury shares reserve” in the
shareholders’ equity. Any realised losses are charged to the same account to the extent of the credit balance
on that account. Any excess losses are charged to retained carnings then to the voluntary reserve and legal
reserve. Subsequent to this, should profits arise from sale of treasury shares an amount is transferred to
reserves and retained earnings equal to the loss previously charged to this account.

4.25  Related parties transactions

Related parties are associates, major sharcholders, board of directors, executive staff, their family members
and the companies owned by them. All related party transactions are carried out with the approval of the
group’s management.

426  End of service benefits

The group provides end of service benefits to its employees. The entitlement to these benefits is based upon
the employees” final salary and length of service, subject to the completion of a minimum setvice period in
accordance with relevant labour law and the employees’ contracts, The expected costs of these benefits are
accrued over the period of employment. This liability, which is unfunded, represents the amount payable to
each employee as a result of termination on the reporting date.

With respect to its Kuwaiti national employees, the group makes contributions to the Public Institution for
Social Security calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries. The group’s obligations are limited to these
contributions, which are expensed when due.

4.27  Foreign currency translation

4.27.1 Functional and presentation currency

‘The consolidated financial statements are presented in currency Kuwait Dinar (KIDY, which is also the
functional curtency of the parent company. Each entity in the group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.



Arzan Financisl Group for Financing and Investiment - KPSC 33
and its Subsidiaries

Consolidated Financizl Statements

31 Decemhber 2016

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
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4.27.2 Foreign currency transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the respective group entity, using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions (spot exchange rate). Foreign exchange gains and
tosses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the remeasurement of monetaty items
denominated in foreign currency at year-end exchange rates are recognised in consolidated statement of profit
or loss. Non-monetary items are not reteanslated at year-end and are measured at historical cost (translated
using the exchange rates at the transaction date), except for non-monetary items measured at fair value which
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when fair value was determined.

4.27.3 Foreign operations

In the group’s financial statements, all assets, liabilities and transactions of group entities with a functional
currency other than the KD are translated mto KID upon consolidation. The functional currency of the
entities in the group has remained unchanged duting the repotting period.

On consolidation, asscts and liabilities have been translated into KID at the closing rate at the reporting date.
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity have been treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated into KID at the closing rate. Incomme and expenses have been
translated into KKID at the average rate over the reporting period. Exchange differences are charged/credited
to other comprehensive income and recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve in equity. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the related cumulative translation differences recognised in equity are
reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and are recognised as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

428  Fiduciary assets
Assets held in trust or in a fiduciary capacity are not treated as assets of the group and accordingly are not
included in these consolidated financial starements.

5 Significant management judgements and estimation uncertainty

The prepatration of the group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount
of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

51 Significant management judgments

In the process of applying the group’s accounting policies, management has made the following significant
judgments, which have the most significant cffect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

5.1.1  Classification of financial instruments
Judgements are made in the classification of financial instruments based on management’s intention at
acquisition.

The group classifies financial assets as held for trading if they are acquired primatily for the purpose of short
term profit making.
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5 Significant management judgements and estimation uncertainty
(continued)
5.1 Significant management judgments (continued)

5.1.1  Classification of financial instruments (continued)

Classification of financtal assets as at fair value through profit or loss depends on how management monitors
the performance of these financial assets. When they are not classified as held for trading but have readily
available fair values and the changes in fair values are reported as part of profit or loss in the management
accounts, they are classified as designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Classification of assets as loans and receivables depends on the nature of the asset. If the group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive market and the intention is to receive fixed or determinable
payments the financial asset is classified as loans and receivables.

All other financial assets are classified as available for sale.

5.1.2  Fair values of assets and liabilities acquired
The determination of the fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities as a result of business
combination requires significant judgement.

5.1.3  Control assessment

When determining control, management considers whether the group has the practical ability to direct the
relevant activities of an investee on its own to generate teturns for itself. The assessment of relevant activities
and ability to use its power to affect variable return requites considerable judgement.

5.2 Estimates uncertainty

Information about estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on recognition and
measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses is provided below. Actual resuits may be substantially
different.

5.2.1 Impairment of assets with definite lives

At the financial position date, the group’s management assesses, whether there is any indication that assets
with definite ives may be impaired. The recoverable amount of an asset is determined based on the “value in
vse” method. This method uses estimated cash flow projections over the estimated useful life of the asset.

522 Impairment of associates

After application of the equity method, the group determines whether it is necessary to recognise any
impairment loss on the group’s investment in its associated companies, at each reporting date based on
existence of any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case the
group calculates the amount of impatrment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate
and its carrying value and recognises the amount in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

523 Impairmemnt of available for sale investments

The group treats available for sale investments as impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value below its cost or where other objective evidence of impaitment exists. The
determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires considerable judgment.
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5 Significant management judgements and estimation uncertainty
(continued)
5.2 Estimates uncertainty (continued)

3.2.4 Impairment of receivables

An estimate of the collectible amount of trade accounts receivable is made when collection of the full amount
is no longer probable. For individually significant amounts, this estimation is performed on an individual
basis. Amounts which are not individually significant, but which are past due, are assessed collectively and 2
provision applied according to the length of time past due, based on historical recovery rates.

525 Classification of real estate property
Management decides on acquisition of a real estate property whether it should be classified as trading,
property held for development or investment property.

The group classifies property as trading property if it is acquired principally for sale in the ordinary course of
business.

The group classifies property as property under development if it is acquited with the intention of
development,

The group classifies property as investment property if it is acquited to generate rental income or for capital
appreciation, or for undetermined future use.

5.2.6 Useful lives of depreciable assets
Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at cach reporting date, based on the
expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical obsolescence that may change
the utlity of certain software and equipment.

5.2.7  Business combinations

Management uses valuation techniques in determining the fair values of the various elements of a business
combination. Particulatly, the fair value of contingent consideration is dependent on the outcome of many
variables that affect future profitability.

5.2.8  Fair value of financial instruments

Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active
market quotes are not avatiable) and non-financial assets, This requires management to develop estimates and
assumptions based on market inputs, using observable data that market pasticipants would use in pricing the
instrument. Where such data is not observable, management uses its best estimate. Estimated fair values of
financial instruments may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at
the reporting date.

5.2.9  Significant influence

Significant influence exists when the size of an entity’s own voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of
other vote holders, give the entity the practical ability unilaterally to direct the relevant activities of the
company.
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6 Subsidiaries

6.1 Composition of the group

Set out below are details of subsidiaries held directly by the group:

Company nhame

Voting capital held
as at 31 December

Piace of
incorporation

Principal
activities

Reporting date

Al-Addan Real Estate Co. — SPC

Arzan CC for Collection Co. — SPC

Kuwait [nvest Real Estate Co— WIL
International Finance Company ~ SAL

{FA Securities Brokerage Co.- SAE

International Financial Advisers
Company — WLL

Saudi Invest Real Estate Co. - WLL
Arzan Wealth (DIFC) Co. Limited

Arzan VC for Projects Management -
WLL

Arzan VC | Lid.

Hilitop 1 UK Limited

Hilltop 3 UK Limited

Hilltop 4 UK Limited

Hilltop 5 UK Limited (6.1.1)

Hilitop Norway Limited
Hilltop Germany Limited
HI Equity Company Lid.

Hf Debt Company Ltd.
Arzan Capital (6.1.2)

Arzan AM Limited (6.1.3)

2016 2015
100% 100%
100% 100%
51% 51%
100% 100%
84.55% 84,56%
65.20% 65.20%
100% 100%
100% 100%
95% 99%
100% 100%
6.61% 6.61%
17.52% 17.52%
9.95% 9.95%
35.98% 30.89%
9.86% 9.86%
7.66% 7.66%
99.29% 99.29%
99.29% 99.29%
100% -
100% -

Kuwait

Kuwait

Kuwait
Lebanon

Egypt
Jordan

Saudi Arabia
United Arab
Emirates

Kuwait

United Arab
Emirates

United
Kingdom
United
Kingdom
United
Kingdom
United
Kingdom
Norway
Germany

Cayman
Islands

Cayman
[slands

United Arab
Emirates

United Arab
Emirates

Trading in all real
estate activities

Trading in real
estate activities and
coltecting money on
behalf of others

Real estate services

Finance services
inctuding financing,
management and
brokerage

Brokerage services
Brokerage services

Real estate services
Financial advisory
services

Projects managemen

Real estate
Real estate
Real estate
Real estate

Real estate
Reaf estate
Real estate

Real estate
Helding Company

General Trading

31 December 2016

31 December 2016

31 December 2016
30 September 2016

30 September 2016
30 September 2016

31 December 2016
30 September 2016

31 December 2016
31 December 2016
30 September 2016
30 September 2016
30 September 2016
30 September 2016

30 September 2016
30 September 2016
30 September 2016

30 September 2016
31 Becemnber 2016

31 December 2016
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6 Subsidiaries (continued)
6.1 Composition of the group {continued)

6.1.1  During the year, the group participated in the capital call to increase the share capital of Hilltop 5
UK Limited. Since the other shareholders did not participate in the increase of the share capital
of the mnvestee, the ownership interest of the group increased from 30.89% to 35.98%. This
change in ownership resulted in a profit of IKID47,591 and is recognised in the shareholders’

equity.

6.1.2  During the year, the group established a new subsidiary under the name of Arzan Capital, in the
United Arab Emirates having a capital of KID302,675 representing its 100% ownership interest in
the subsidiary.

6.1.3  During the year, the group established a new subsidiary under the name of Arzan AM Limited, in
the United Arab Emirates having a capital of AED1 representing its 100% ownership interest in
the subsidiary.

The group considers that it controls Hilltop 1 UK Limited, Hilltop 3 UK Limited, Hilltop 4 UK Limited,
Hilitop 5 UK Limited, Hilltop Germany Limited and Hilitop Norway Limited even though it owns less than
0% ownership interests as a result of contractual arrangement with the other investors in these entites. The
group has the majority voting rights through class “A” shares in the respective companies, and its approval is
required for all major operational decisions.

6.2 Subsidiaries with material non-controlling interesty:

The group includes the following subsidiaties with material non-controlling interests (NCI):

Proportion of
ownership interests
and voting rights

Name held by the NCI Results allocated to NCI  Accumulated NCI
31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
% % KD KD KD KD
Kuwait Invest Real Estate Co. ~ WLL 49 49 (180,332)  (128,082) 5,112,285 5292616
Hilltop 1 UK Limited 93.39 93.39 163,379 209,048 2,709,756 3,014,468
Hilltop 3 UK Limited 82.48 82.48 444,441 672,709 8,308,275 9,881,957
Hilltop 4 UK Limited 90.05 90.05 802,748 148,441 6,878,660 7,951,700
Hilltop & UK Limited 64.02 69.11 {2,815) (1,388) 5,422,544 5562 952
Hilltop Norway Limited 90.14 90.14 379,824 244544 6,536,976 6,513,728

Hifltop Germany Limited 92.34 92.34 295,492 189,002 6,743,293 6,758,960
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

6 Subsidiaries (continued)

6.2 Subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests (vontinued)

Summarised financial information for subsidiaties with material non-controlling interests, before intergroup

elimination is set out below:

a) Kuwait Invest Real Estate Co, — WL
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
Non-current assets 40,452,955 10,808,615
Current assets 7.522 7,522
Total assets 10,460,477 10,816,137
Current liabilities 27,243 14,879
Total liabilities 27,243 14 879
Equity attributable to the shareholders of the parent company 5,320,949 5,608,642
Non-controlling interests 5,112,285 5,292 616
Total equity 10,433,234 10,801,258
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
Revenue (355,660) (248,027)
Expenses and other charges {12,364) {13,365)
Loss for the year attributable to the shareholders of the parent company {187,692) (133,310)
Loss for the year attributable to NCI {180,332) (128,082)
Loss for the year {368,024) (261,392)
Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable to the shareholders of the
parent company {187,692) (133,310}
Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable to NCI {180,332) (128,082)
Total comprehensive loss for the year {368,024) (261,392)
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD

Net cash flow from operating activifies

Net cash inflows
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6.2 Subiidiaries wirh material non-controlling interests (continued)
) Hilltop 1 UK Limited
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2018 2015
KD KD
Non-current assets 2,667,471 3,079,867
Current assets 235,376 158,930
Total assets 2,902,847 3,238,797
Current liabilities 1,175 10,831
Total liabilities 1,175 10,831
Equity attributable to the shareholders of the parent company 191,916 213,498
Non-controlling interests 2,709,756 3,014,468
Total equity 2,901,672 3,227,966
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
Revenue 181,005 232,004
Expenses and other charges {(6,055) (8,240)
Profit for the year atfributable to the shareholders of the parent company 11,871 14,806
Profit for the year attributable to NCI 163,379 209,048
Profit for the year 174,950 223,854
Other comprehensive loss for the year attributable to the shareholders of the
parent company \ (36,520} -
Other comprehensive loss for the year attributable to NCI {515,640) -
Total other comprehensive loss for the year (552,160) -
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year attributable to the
shareholders of the parent company {24,949) 14,808
Total comprehensive income / {loss) for the year attributable to NCi {352,261) 209,048
Total comprehensive income /(loss) for the year (377,210} 223,854
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
Net cash flow used in investing activities (2,710) {9,578)
Net cash outfiows (2,710) {9,678)
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6 Subsidiaries (continued)
6.2 Subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests (continued)
c) Hilltop 3 UK Limired
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
Non-curreni assets 9,493,988 11,119,543
Current assets 579,812 862,691
Total assets 10,073,800 11,982,234
Current liabilities 966 1,490
Total liabilities 966 1,490
Equity attributable to the shareholders of the parent company 1,764,559 2,098,787
Non-controlling inferests 8,308,275 9,881,957
Total equity 10,072,834 11,980,744
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
Revenue 543,951 825,879
Expenses and other charges (5,117) (10,296)
Profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of the parent company 94,393 142,874
Profit for the year attributable to NC| 444,441 672,709
Profit for the year 538,834 815,583
Other comprehensive loss for the year attributable to the shareholders of the
parent company (350,445) -
Other comprehensive loss for the year attributable to NCI (1,650,039) -
Total other comprehensive foss for the year (2,000,484} -
Total comprehensive {loss)/income for the year attributable to the
shareholders of the parent company {256,052) 142,874
Total comprehensive (foss)/income for the year aftributable to NCI (1,205,598) 672,709
Total comprehensive (loss)fincome for the year (1,461,650) 815,683
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
20186 2015
KD KD
Net cash flow used in investing activities (163,060) (6,197)
Net cash outflows (163,080) (6,197)
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6 Subsidiaries (continued)
6.2 Subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests (continned)
d) Hilltop 4 UK Limited
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
Non-current assets 6,885,980 7,848,790
Current assets 753,813 981,429
Total assets 7,639,793 8,830,219
Current liabilities 1,166 -
Total liabilities 1,166 -
Equity attributable to the shareholders of the parent company 759,967 878,519
Non-controlling interests 6,878,660 7,951,700
Total equity 7,638,627 8,830,219
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
Revenue 898,103 197,997
Expenses and other charges (6,668) (33,158)
Profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of the parent company 88,689 16,400
Profit for the year attributable to NCI 802,746 148,441
Profit for the year 891,435 164,841
Other comprehensive loss for the year attributable to the shareholders of the
parent company (148,189) -
Other comprehensive [oss for the year attributable to NCI (1,341,291) n
Total other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year {1,489,480) -
Total comprehensive {loss)/income for the year attributable to the
shareholders of the parent company {59,500} 16,400
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year attributable to NCI (538,545} 148,441
Totat comprehensive {ioss)/income for the year (598,045} 164,841
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
Net cash flow used in investing activities {5,578) (9.274)
Net cash outflows {5,578) (9,274)
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6 Subsidiaries (continued)
6.2 Subsidiaries with material non-controlling interesty (contimied)
) Hilitop 5 UK Limited
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
Non-current assets 8,698,843 8,311,301
Current assets 15,6874 438,282
Total assets 8,714,517 8,749,683
Non-current fiabilities - 700,220
Current liabilities 244,438 -
Total liabilities 244,438 700,220
Equity attributable to the sharehoiders of the parent company 3,047,535 2486411
Non-controlling interests 5,422,544 5,562,952
Total equity 8,470,079 8,049,363
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
Revenue 64 64
Expenses and other charges (4,461} (2,072)
Loss for the year attributable to the shareholders of the parent company (1,582) (620)
Loss for the year atiributable to NCI {2,815) (1,388)
Loss for the year (4,397} (2,008)
Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to the shareholders of
the parent company 13,617 -
Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to NCI 24,052 -
Total other comprehensive income for the year 37,569 -
Total comprehensive income/(loss)for the year attributable to the
shareholders of the parent company 11,935 (620)
Total comprehensive income/(loss)or the year attributable to NCI 21,237 (1,388)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 33,172 (2,008)
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
Net cash flow used in investing acfivities {7,664) (11,086)
Net cash outflows {7,664} {11,068)




Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investiment - KPSCG

arict its Subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements
31 Becember 2016

43

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

6 Subsidiaries (continued)
6.2 Subsidiaries with material non-controliing intferests (continued)
f) Hilltop Norway Limited
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
Non-current assets 7,077,363 7,077,363
Current assets 458,984 262,078
Total assels 7,536,347 7,339,441
Current liabilities 284,322 91,098
Total liabilities 284,322 91,096
Equity attributable to the shareholders of the parent company 715,049 734,817
Non-controlling interests 6,536,976 6,513,728
Totatl equity 7,252,025 7,248,345
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
Revenue 427,622 435,964
Expenses and other charges (6,251) {163,841}
Profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of the parent company 41,547 27,579
Profit for the year attributable to NC! 379,824 244 544
Profit for the year 421,371 272,123
Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to the shareholders of
the parent company 363 -
Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to NCI 3,317 “
Total other comprehensive income for the year 3,680 -
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to the shareholders of
the parent company 41,910 27,579
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to NCI 383,141 244 544
Total comprehensive income for the year 425,051 272,123
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2018 2015
KD KD
Net cash flow used in investing activities (421) (174,636)
Net cash outflows (421) (174,836)
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6 Subsidiaries (continued)
6.2 Subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests (continyed)

2 Hilitop Germany Limited

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
Non-current assets 7,150,572 7,150,572
Current assets 495,243 289,948
Total assets 7,645,815 7,440,520
Current fiabifities 343,137 132,351
Total liabilities 343,137 132,351
Equity attributable to the shareholders of the parent company 559,385 549,209
Non-controlling interests 6,743,293 6,758,960
Total equity 7,302,678 7,308,169
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KO
Revenue 325,916 372,004
Expenses and other charges {5,911} (167,644)
Profit for the year attribuiable to the shareholders of the parent company 24513 15,358
Profit for the year attributable to NCI 295,492 189,002
Profit for the year 320,005 204,360
Other comprehensive loss for the year attributable to the shareholders of the
parent company (421) -
Other comprehensive loss for the year aftributable to NCI (5,070) -
Total other comprehensive loss for the year (5,491) -
Total comprehensive income for the year atfributable to the sharehelders of
the parent company 24,092 15,358
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to NCI 290,422 189,002
Total comprehensive income for the year 314,514 204,360
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
Net cash flow used in investing activities (19,134) (143,512)
Net cash outflows (19,134) (143,612)
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7 Income from instalment credit debtors
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
20186 2015
KD KD
Interest income from instalment credit 829,589 977,172
Discount, commission and fees 329,804 570,370
Recovery of written off balances 622,682 1,329,808
1,882,075 2,877,350
8 Dividend income
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
From:
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 201,115 263,505
Available for sale investments 2,690,640 2,441 693
2,891,755 2,705,198

9 Finance costs

Finance costs telate to the group’s borrowing activities including amounts due to banks, term loans and

murabaha payable.

10 Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share

Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year attributable
to the shareholders of the parent company by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the

year excluding treasury shares.

The parent company had no outstanding dilutive potential shares.

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to shareholders of the parent

company(KD} 671,417 (6,998,370)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year {excluding

treasury shares) — share 796,798,664 796,824,539
Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share attributable to the
sharehelders of the parent company - Fils 0.843 (8.783)
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11 Net gain on financial assets
Net gain on financial assets, analysed by category, is as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
Cash and cash equivalents 504,489 253,066
Instaiments credit debtors 1,593,551 2,328,182
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 201,118 (673,048)
Available for sale investments 1,484,415 (5,183,507)
Net realised and unrealised gain 3,783,573 (3,275,307)
Net unrealised loss recognised directly in equity 495,687 3,368,482
4,279,260 93,175
12 Cash and cash equivalents
31 Pec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
Cash and bank balances 6,536,799 3,765,890
Term deposits — 1 to 3 months 3,567,130 3,651,750
10,103,929 7,307,640

The term deposits carry effective interest rate of 1.35% (31 December 2415: 1.35%) per annum.

13 Instalment credit debtors
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
Gross instalment credit debtors 14,598,812 16,725,069
Deferred income (1,603,010) (1,649,111}
12,995,802 15,075,958
Specific provision for doubtful debts (1,682,970} (1,361,267)
General provision for doubtful debts {194,179} {219,950)
11,118,653 13,494 741
Gross instalment credit debtors are repayable as follows:
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
20186 2015
KD KD
Within one year 4,518,642 7.944 698
More than a year 10,082,170 8,780,371

14,598,812 16,725,060
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13 Instalment credit debtors (continued)
The effective annual interest rate earned on instalment credit ranged from 2.5% to 8% per annum (31
December 2015: 2.5% to 8% per annum).

The movement in the provision for instalment credit debtors is as follows:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
Specific General Specific General
provision provision Total provision provision Total
KD KD KD K& KD KD
Opening balance 1,361,267 219,950 1,581,217 708,325 307,021 1,015,346
Foreign currency
transtation 7.408 - 7,408 15,862 13,641 29,603
Write off - - - {12,800} - {12,800)
Charge for the year 288,524 - 288,524 521,195 27,973 549 168
Transfer 25,771 {(25,771) - 128,685 (128,685) -
Closing balance 1,682,970 194,179 1,877,149 1,361,267 219,950 1,581,217

The provision for doubtful debts is in agreement, in all material respect, with the specific provision
requirements of the Central Bank of [{uwait and IFRS. Furthermore, a general provision of 1% on instalment
credit balances, where no specific provision is made, is taken in accordance with the instructions of the
Central Bank of Kuwait.

Included within the gross instalment credit debtors is an amount of KID308,514 (31 December 2015:
KID309,996) in respect of related parties (note 32). This amount is secured by way of pledge of certain local
and foreign shares.

14 Investments at fair value through profit or loss
31 Dec, 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
l.ocal quoted shares 830,399 1,763,523
Faoreign quoted shares 54,268 69,040
Investments in managed portiolios 5,830,206 4,887,711
6,814,873 6,720,274

The investments in managed portfolios are pledged against term loans (note 24).

The hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair values of investments at fair value through profit or loss
by valuations techniques is presented in Note 34.2.

15 Accounts receivable and other assets
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD

Trade receivables 6,603,749 6,449,085
Provision for doubtful debts (1,491,723} (1,491,723)

5,112,026 4,957 362
Staff loans receivable 105 2,005
Prepayments and refundable deposits 59,716 60,230
Advance payments towards purchase of investments - 1,137,612
Other assets 650,102 622,962

5,821,949 6,780,171




Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Ihvestment - KPSC 48
and its Subsidiaries

Consofidated Financial Statements

31 December 206

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

16 Properties held for trading

Properties held for trading represent the group’s share of investments in properties outside Kuwait.

The movement in the properties held for trading is as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD

Balance at 1 January 1,934,714 2,131,057
Sale during the year - {196,343)

1,934,714 1,934,714
Provision for properties held for trading (620,767) (620,767)
Balance at 31 December 1,313,947 1,313,947

As a result of impairment testing to the carryving value of the properties no indication that an impairment is
required. The impairment testing by management was based on fair value of the properties which has been
determined based on two valuations obtained from independent and qualified valuers as of the date of the
consolidated financial starements.

17 Available for sale investments
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
Local quoted shares 5,609,999 26,030,807
Local unguoted shares 9,642,221 8,926,157
Foreign unquoted shares 52,032,605 44,346,229
Investments in managed portfolios 31,317,258 12,003,303
Investment in managed funds 210,607 266,633
98,812,690 91,673,129
The movement in the available for sale investments is as follows:
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
Balance at 1 January 91,573,129 87,044,475
Additions during the year 27,760,164 23,357,632
Sale during the year {19,812,768) (15,121,421)
Change in fair value {707,835) (3,707 557)
Balance at 31 December 98,812,690 91,573,129

The unquoted investments include investments having a carrying value of KID37,680,555 (31 December
2015: KID33,246,800) stated at cost due to unavailability of reliable sources to determine their fair values.
Management studies and cash flow expectations for these mvestments do not indicate any impairment for
these investments.

Quoted and unquoted local shares and investments in managed portfolios with an aggregate carrying value of
K1344,814,770 (31 December 2015 KID24,893,195) are pledged against due to banks, term loans and
murabaha payable (notes 22, 24 and 25).
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17  Available for sale investments (continued)
The investments in managed funds are carried at net asset value provided by the fund managers which
represent the best estimate of fair value available for these investments.

During the year, the group recognised an impairment loss of KI31,221,913 (31 December 2015:
KID7,267,257) on certain investments. Management is not aware of any factors which may indicate any
further impairment for the available for sale investments.

18 Investment in associates
18.1 The details of the group’s investment in associates are given below:
Percentage of
Country of ownership
incorporation 31 December Activity
2016 2015
% %
Offset Holding Co. - KSCC Kuwait 50.00 50.00 Brokerage
Al Wafir Marketing Services Co. - KSCC Kuwait 34.00 34.00 Real estate
Al Oula Staughterhouse Co. - KSCC Kuwait 28.89 28.89 Services
Gulf Real Estate Co. - WLL Kuwait 2013 20.13 Real estate
Hill Property Investment LP United Kingdom 84.32 84.32 Real estate
Surtees LP United Kingdom 96.96 96.96 Real estate

Hunt Property LP United Kingdom 97.84 97.84 Real estate
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

18 Investment in associates (continued)

18.3 Set out below is the aggregate information for the individually immaterial associates.

31 Dec. 31 Dec.

2016 2015
KD KD

Aggregate share in associates’ assets and liabilities:
Assets 1,338,184 1,224,849
Liabilities (71,809) (42,390)

1,266,375 1,182,459
Aggregate share in associates’ results:
Revenue 243,934 228,209
Profit for the year 141,693 108,122
Group's share of total comprehensive income 141,683 109,122
Dividends received §7.784 36,115
18.4 The movement in the investment in associates 15 as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.

2016 2015
KD Kb

At 1 January 50,604,203 53,143,043
Disposal - (2,800,000)
Share of results 2,060,089 1,377,871
Dividends {1,958,125) (1,696,731)
Capital reduction (304,324) {340,357)
Foreign currency translation of foreign associates (3,054,052} 620,377
At 31 December 47,347,791 50,604,203

18.5 Investment in associate (Al Wafir Marketing Setvices) with a cartying value of 107,326,873 (31
December 2015: KI1D7,319,757) is pledged against term loans (note 24).

18.6 All associates are unquoted.

19 Investment in real estate under development

This represents the parent company’s 33.54% share in the ownership of the right of use of land located in Al
Dubaiya leased from the Ministry of Finance in Kuwait. The right of use of land is jointly owned by the
parent company and other investors through a real estate portfolio agreement. Under the agreement, the real
estate is being developed by one of the other investors, which is a company specialized in the field of real
estate Investments.

The movement of the investment in real estate under development is as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
At 1 January 4,108,650 “
Resulted from reciassification - 4,765,920
Additions 206,451 -
Impairment in value (134,161) (657,270)
At 31 December 4,180,940 4,108,650
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19 Investment in real estate under development (continued)

As a result of impairment testing to the carrying value of the property, the group recognised an impairment
toss of KID134,161 (31 December 2015: KID657,270). The impairment testing by management was based on
fair value of the property which has been determined based on two valuations obtained from independent
and qualified valuers as of the date of the consolidated financial statements.

20 Investment properties

Land Building Total

KD KD KD

Cost
1 January 2016 1,023,750 1,484,989 2,508,739
31 December 2016 1,023,750 1,484,989 2,508,739
Accumulated depreciation
1 January 2016 - 676,679 676,679
Charge for the year - 59,376 59,376
31 December 2016 - 736,055 736,055
Net book value
At 31 December 2016 1,023,750 748,934 1,772,684
Fair value as at 31 December 2018 4,712,547 1,252,828 2,965,375
Cost
1 January 2015 1,023,750 1,484,989 2,508,739
31 December 2015 1,023,750 1,484,989 2,508,739
Accumulated depreciation
1 January 2015 - 617,616 617,616
Charge for the year - 59,063 59,063
31 December 2015 - 676,679 676,679
Net book value
At 31 December 2015 1,023,750 808,310 1,832,060
Fair value as at 31 December 2015 1,689,313 1,333,812 3,023,125

Land is not depreciated. Building is depreciated over 25 years. The fair value of the investment properties is
based on independent valuations.

‘The mvestment property represents the part of building constructed on land rented to thitd parties, and is
accounted for as an investment property under IAS 40.

The investment properties are mortgaged against murabaha payable (note 25).
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22 Due to banks

This represents outstanding amounts of the credit facilities granted to the group from local and foreign banks
in the form of overdraft faciliies, The credit facilities carry interest rate ranging from 2.35% to 3.90% per
annum (31 December 2015: 2.35% - 3.9% per annum) and payable on demand. Credit facilities are granted
against pledge of certain available for sale investments (note 17).

23 Accounts payable and other liabilities

31 Dec. 31 Dec.

2018 2015
KD KD

Trade payables 106,783 650,149
Other payables 3,343,421 3,465,589
Accrued interest 209,202 216,054
Provision for staff leave 174,658 197,020
KFAS payable 219,469 219,459
NLST and Zakat payable 2,826,395 2,842,290
Due to shareholders 213,065 224,030

7,092,983 7,814,601
24 Term loans

Term loans are repayable to local and foreign banks in different periods and bear interest at rates ranging
from 4.75% to 5.25% (31 December 2015: 4.75% to 5.25%) per annum.

l.oans are repayable as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
Within one year 7,330,000 4,290,000
After one year 11,400,000 8,480,000
18,730,000 12,770,000

Loans are all denominated in Kuwaiti Dinars and are secured by the pledge of investments at fair value
through profit or loss, available for sale investments and investment in associate (notes 14, 17 and 18) and
payabie in vasious Instalments ending in June 2020,

25 Murabaha payable

This represents Islamic financing obtained from local and foreign financial institutions, carrying an effective
profit rate of 3% to 5.25% (31 December 2015: 3% - 5.25%) per annum. This financing is secured by way of
mortgage of certain available for sale investments, investment properties and property and equipment
(notes17, 20 and 21) and payable in various instalments ending in June 2020.
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25 Murabaha payable (continued)
Murabaha payable is due as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2018 2015
KD KD
Within one year 3,304,835 2,770,320
After one year 4,781,043 8,053,218
8,085,878 10,823,538

26 Share capital and share premium
As at 31 December 2016, the authorised, issued and paid up share capital of the parent company consists of
802,882,570 shares of 100 {ils each (31 December 2015: 802,882,570 shares). All shares are in cash.

The share premium is non distributable.

27 Treasury shares
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
Number of treasury shares 6,083,892 6,083,892
Percentage of ownership {%) B 0.758%
Market value (KD} 185,659 234,230
Cost (KD) 559,233 559,233

Reserves of the parent company equivalent to the cost of the treasury shares have been earmarked as non-
distributable.

28 Reserves

Legal reserve

In accordance with the Companies Law and the parent company's Memorandum of Incorporation and
Articles of Association, as amended, 10% of the profit for the year attributable to the shareholdess of the
parent company (before contributions to KFAS, NLST, Zakat and directors” remuneration) is required to be
transferred to legal reserve. The parent company may resolve to discontinue such annual transfers when the
reserve totals 50% of the paid up share capital.

Distribution of the reserve is limited to the amount required to enable the payment of a dividend of 5% of
paid up share capital to be made in years when retained eamnings are not sufficient for the payment of a
dividend of that amount.

Voluntaty reserve

The parent company’s Articles of Association, as amended require that 10% of the profit for the year
attrsbutable to the sharcholders of the parent company (before contributions to KFAS, NLST, Zakat and
directors’ remuneration) should be transferred to voluntary reserve. Thete are no restrictions on distribution
of voluntary reserve.

No transfer is required in a year in which the patent company has incutred a loss or where cumulative losses
exist.
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29 Annual general assembly
The Annual General Assembiy of the shareholders of the parent company held on 9 June 2016 approved the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 without dividend.

Also, the Extraotdinary General Assembly of the parent company held on 9 June 2016 approved to write off
accumnulated losses of 124,090,547 as at 31 December 2015 by using legal reserve of KID375,497, voluntary
reserve of KID375,497 and share premium of KID3,339,553.

30 Fiduciary accounts

Investment portfolios managed by the group and assets held in trust or in a fiduciary capacity and related
liabilities are not treated as the group's assets or liabilities and accordingly are not included in the consolidated
financial position. Total fiduciary assets as at the financial position date were KID5,764,463 (31 December
2015; KID3,646,123).

31 Segmental information

Operating segments are identified based on internal management reporting information that is regulatly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its
petformance, and is reconciled to group profir or loss.

The group’s principal trading activities are carried out within the State of Kuwait and all of the group’s assets
and liabilities are located in [Kuwait in addition to GCC, Middle Fast and other countries. The group operates
in four business segments; instalment credit, investments, financial brokerage and real estate. The segmental
analysis of total revenues, profit for the year, total assets and total liabilities for the business segments are as
follows:

Instalment Financial
credit Investments brokerage Real estate Total
KD KD KD KD KD
Year ended 31 December 2016
Total revenues 2,232,543 7,324,815 118,383 174,118 9,849,859
(Loss)/profit for the year (877,323) 3,660,595 {301,163) 114,335 2,596,444
As at 31 December 2016
Total assets 20,728,873 147,553,912 13,459,583 9,867,571 191,609,939
Total liabilities 19,678,650 18,209,940 985,500 - 38,874,090
Net assets 1,050,223 129,343,972 12,474,083 9,867,571 152,735,849
Year ended 31 December 2015
Total revenues 3,102,137 4,682,367 294,458 175,179 8,254,141
(Loss)/profit for the year {175,539) (5,424,794) (158,393) 116,116 (5,642610)
As at 31 December 2015
Total assets 22 689,595 139,856,423 15,407,652 9,854,657 187,808,327
Total liabilities 19,108,677 13,175,046 1,685,788 - 34,170,311

Net assets 3,681,018 126,680,477 13,621,864 0,854,657 153,638,016
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32 Related party balances and transactions

Related parties represent associates, major sharcholders, directors and key management personnel of the group,
and entities controlled, jointly controlied or significantly influenced by such parties. Pricing policies and terms of
these transactions are approved by the group’s management. Transactions between the parent company and its
subsidiaries which are refated parties of the parent company have been eliminated on consolidation and are not
disclosed in this note.

Details of significant related party balances and transactions are as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
Balances included in the consolidated statement of financial position
instalment credit debtors-gross (note 13) 308,514 309,996
Due from related parties 1,104,711 676,801
Due to shareholders (note 23) 213,065 224,030
Due to related parties 191,888 205,257
Year ended Year ended
31 Pec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
Transactions included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
income from instaliment credit debtors 20,148 21,049
Key management compensation:
Salaries and other short term benefits 514,637 588,705
£nd of service benefits 45,277 38,248

33 Risk management objectives and policies
The group’s activities expose it to variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The parent company’s board of directors sets out policies for reducing each of the risks discussed below.

The group does not use derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

The most significant financial risks to which the group is exposed are described below.

33.1  Market risk

a) Foreign currency risk

The group mainly operates in the GCC, other Middle Eastern countries, Europe and USA and is exposed to
foreign currency risk arising from various foreign currency exposuses. Foreign exchange risk atises from
future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign opetations.

To mitigate the group’s exposure to foreign currency risk, non-Kuwaiti Dinar cash flows are monitored in

accordance with the group’s risk management policies. Generally, the group’s risk management procedures
distinguish short-term foreign currency cash flows {due within twelve months) from longer-term cash flows.
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33 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)
331  Market risk (continued)
a) Foreign currency risk (continued)

The group had the following net significant exposures denominated in foreign currencies, translated into
Kuwaiti Dinar at the closing rate:

31 Dec. 31 Pec.

2016 2015

KD KD
US Dollar 20,182,677 18,837 679
Lebanese Lira 7,475,975 7,073,156
GBFP 4,683,665 6,870,524
Egyptian Pound 1,082,360 1,935,881
UAE Dirham 146,890 53,443
Saudi Riyal {7,908) (7,908)
Euro 1,142,634 1,916,938
Omani Riyal 54,085 51,858
Jordanian Dinar 882,947 873,018
Norwegian Korone 817,817 1,144,100

The following table details the group’s sensitivity to a 2% (2015 2% increase and decrease in the KID against
above foreign currencies. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currencies denominated
monetary assets and labilities and adjusts their teanslation at the year end for a 2% change in foreign currency
rates. A positive number below indicates an Increase in profit and equity and a negative number indicates
decrease in profit and equity. All other variables are held constant. There has been no change in the methods
and the assumptions used in the preparation of the sensitivity analysis.

+2 % Impact +2 % Impact -2 % Impact -2 % Impact
31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015 20186 2015
KD KD KD KD
Profit for the year 206,902 274,855 {206,902} (274,855)
Equity 522,319 501,642 {522,319) (501,642)

b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in intercst rates will affect future profitability or the
fair values of financial instruments. As the group is not exposed to a significant interest rate risk on interest
bearing assets, the group is exposed to interest rate risk with respect to its borrowings which are both at fixed
rate and floating interest rate. The risk is managed by the group by maintaining an appropriate mix between
fixed and floating rate borrowings. The Board has established levels of interest rate risk by setting limits on
the interest rate gaps for stipulated periods.

Positions are monitored on a daily basis and hedging strategies used, if required, to ensure positions ate
maintained within established limits.

The effective interest rate (effective yield) of a monetary financial instrument is the rate that, when used in 2
present value calculation, results in the carrying amount of the instrument. The rate is a historical rate for a
fixed rate instrument carried at amortised cost and a current rate for a floating rate instrument or an
instrument cagried at fair value.
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33 Risk management objectives and policies {continued)
331  Market risk (continued)

) Interest rate risk (continued)
The group’s interest rate exposure based on earlier of contractual repricing arrangements and maturity at 31
Decernber 2016 was as follows:

Sub-totaf Non-interest Effective
Uptoi 3-12 up to Over 1 bearing interest
month 1-3 months months 1 year year items Total rate
KD KD KD KD KD KD KD (%)
Assets
Cash and cash
equivalents 6,536,799 3,667,130 - 10,103,929 “ . 10,103,929 1.35
Instalment credit debtors 1,644,197 1,524,532 2,622,266 5,790,995 5,327,658 - 11,118,653 2.5-8
Investments at fair value
through profit or ioss - - - - - 6,814,873 6,814,873 -
Accounts receivable and
other assets - - - - 364,424 5,457,525 5,821,949 -
Due from related parties . R . . R 1,104,711 1,104,711
8,180,996 5,091,662 2,622,266 15,894,924 5,692,082 13,377,109 34,964,115
Liabilities
Due to banks 3,847,752 - - 3,847,752 - - 3,847,752 2.35-39
Accounts payable and
other liahilities - - - - - 7,092,993 7,092,993 -
Due to related parties - - - - - 181,888 191,888 -
Term loans 1,370,000 2,140,000 3,820,000 7,330,000 11,400,000 - 18,730,000 4.5-5,25
Murahaha payable 956,209 - 2,348,626 3,304,835 4,781,043 - 8,085,878 3-5.25
Provision for employees’
end of service benefits . . N R . 925 579 925,579 -
6,173,961 2,140,000 6,168,626 14,482,587 16,181,043 8,210,460 38,874,090
The group’s interest rate exposure based on eariier of contractual repricing arrangements and maturity at 31
December 2015 was as follows:
Sub-totat Non-interest Effective
Upto1 3-12 up to Over 1 bearing interest
month 1-3 months months 1 year year items Total rate
KD KD KD KD KD KD KD {%)
Assets
Cash and cash
equivalents 3,755,820 3,551,750 - 7,307,840 - - 7,307,640 1.35
Instaiment credit debtors 2,257,245 1,524 532 2,122,268 5,904,043 7,590,698 - 13,494,741 2.5-8
Invesiments at fair value
through profit or loss - - - - - 6,720,274 6,720,274 -
Accounts receivable and
other assets - - - - - 8,780,171 6,780,171 -
Due from related parties - - - - - 676,801 676,801 -
8,013,135 5,076,282 2,122,266 13,291,683 7,590,698 14,177,246 34,978,627
liabilities
Due to banks 1,661,901 - - 1,661,901 - - 1,661,901 2.35-3.9
Accounts payable and
other liabilities i N N - - 7,814,601 7,814,601 -
Due to related parties - - - - - 295257 205,257 -
Term loans 170,000 1,090,000 3,030,000 4,290,000 8,480,000 - 12,770,000  4.75-5.25
Murabaha payable 432 580 - 2,337,740 2,770,320 8,053,218 - 10,823,538 3-5.25
Provision for employees’
end of service benefits - - - - - 805,014 865,014 -

2,264,481 1,000,000 5,367,740 8,722,221 16,533,218 8,914,872 34,170,311
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33 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)
331 Market risk (continued)

b) Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the result for the year to a reasonably possible change in
interest rates of +1% and 1% (2015: +1% and —1%) with effect from the beginning of the year. These
changes are considered to be reasonably possible based on observation of current matket condition. The
calculations are based on the group’s financial instruments held at cach financial position date. All other
vagiables are held constant.

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
+1% 1% + 1% -1%
KD KD KD KD
Results for the year (94,410) 94,410 (44,531} 44 531
Equity {94,410) 94,410 (44,531} 44 534

c) Price risk

The group is exposed to equity price risk with respect to its equity investments. Lquity investments are
classified either as investments at fair value through profit o loss (including trading securities), and available
for sale investments.

To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the group diversifies its portfolio.
Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by the group.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to equity price risks at the
consolidated financial statements date.

If equity prices had been 10% highet/lower, the effect on the profit for the year and equity for the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 would have been as follows:

Profit for the year Equity
31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015 2016 2015
KD KD KD KD
Investments at fair value through profit or
loss +681,487 672,027 +681,487 +672,027
Available for sale investments - - 9,881,269 +9,157,313

332 Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the
other party to incur a financial loss. The group’s credit policy and exposure to credit risk is monitored on an
ongoing basis. The group seeks to avoid undue concentrations of risks with individuals or groups of
customers in specific locatons or business through diversification of its activities. It also obtains security
when appropeiate.
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33 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)

33.2  Credit risk (continued)
The group’s exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amounts of financial assets recognised at the
financial position date, as summarised below:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
Cash and cash equivalents 10,103,929 7,307,640
instalment credit debtors 11,118,653 13,494,741
Investments at fair value through profit or loss (note 14) 5,930,206 4,887,711
Accounts receivable and other assets 5,821,949 6,780,171
Due from related parties 1,104,711 676,801
Total 34,079,448 33,147,064
33.3 Concentration of assets
The distribution of assets by geographic region is as follows:
Other
Middle
Eastern Europe
Kuwait GCC countries and other USA Total
KD KD KD KD KD KD

At 31 December 2016
Cash and cash equivalents 3,057,366 408,129 4,761,792 65,885 1,810,777 10,103,929
Instaiment credit debtors 5,107,680 - 6,010,973 - " 11,118,653
Investments at fair value

through profit or loss 6,808,509 - 6,364 - - 6,814,873
Accounts receivable and other

assets 1,206,005 94,940 1,422,022 365,825 2,733,157 5,821,949
Due from related parties 993,939 - 110,772 - “ 1,404,711
Properties held for trading - 1,313,947 - - - 1,313,947
Available for sale investments 48,428,661 1,045,370 202,567 20,879,457 28,256,735 98,812,690
Investment in associates 28,300,353 - - 19,047,438 - 47,347,791
investment in real estate under

development 4,180,940 - - - - 4,180,940
Investment propeities 1,772,684 - - - - 1,772,684
Property and equipment 3,137,670 4,041 76,061 - - 3,217,772
Total 102,993,707 2,866,427 12,590,551 40,358,585 32,800,669 191,609,939
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

33 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)
33.3  Concentration of assets (continued)
Other
Middle
Eastern Europe
Kuwait GCC countries and other UsSA Total
KD KD KD KD KD KD

At 31 December 2015
Cash and cash equivalents 2,134,211 341,216 4,200,347 283,341 348,525 7,307,640
Instaliment credit debtors 8,556,663 - 4,938,078 - - 13,494,741
Investments at fair value

through profit or loss 6,651,234 - 69,040 - . 6,720,274
Accounts receivable and other

assets 2,799,185 282,720 3,238,885 254,024 205,357 6,780,171
Due from related parties 344,581 - 47 444 284776 . 676,801
Properties held for trading - 1,313,847 - - - 1,313,947
Available for sale investments 56,591,276 522,189 83,991 22,151,208 12,224,465 81,573,129
Investment in associates 28,530,878 - - 22,073,325 - 50,604,203
Investment in real estate under

development 4,108,650 - - - - 4,108,650
Investment properties 1,832,060 - - - - 1,832,060
Property and equipment 3,207,176 6,860 182,675 - - 3,396,711
Total 114,755,914 2,466,932 12,760,460 45,046,674 12,778,347 187,808,327

33.4  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will be unable to meet its Labilities when they fall due. To limit this risk,
management has arranged diversified funding sources, manages assets with liquidity m mind, and monitors liquidity
on a daily basis.

The table below summatises the maturity profile of the group’s assets and liabilities. The maturities of assets and
liabilities have been determined on the basis of the remaining period from the financial position date to the
contractual maturity date. The maturity profile for available for sale investments is determined based on management's
estimate of liquidation of those investments, Maturity profile of assets and liabilities at 31 December 2016:

Sub-total Up
Up to 1-3 312 to Over
1 month months months 1 year 1 year Total
KD KD KD KD KD KD

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 6,536,799 3,567,130 - 10,103,929 - 10,103,829
Instailment credit debtors 1,644,197 1,624,532 2,622,266 5,790,995 5,327,658 11,118,653
Investments at fair value

through profit or loss 6,814,873 - - 6,814,873 - 6,814,873
Accounts receivable and

other assets 163,397 4,929,768 359,417 5,442,582 379,367 5,821,949
Due from related parties - - 1,104,711 1,104,711 - 1,104,711
Properties heid for trading - - 1,313,947 1,313,947 - 1,313,947
Available for sale

investmenis - - - - 98,812,690 98,812,690
Investment in associates - - - - 47,347,791 47,347,791
Investment in real estate

under development . . . - 4,180,940 4,180,940
Investment properties - - - - 1,772,684 1,772,684
Property and equipment . . . - 3,217,772 3,297,772
Total assets 15,149,266 10,021,430 5,400,341 30,671,037 161,038,902 191,609,939
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33 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)

33.4  Liquidity risk (continued)

Sub-total
Upto 1-3 312 Up to Over
1 month months months 1 year 1 year Total
KD KD KD KD KD KD

LIABILITIES
Due to banks 3,847,752 . - 3,847,752 . 3,847,752
Accounts payable and

other liabilities 727,686 1,131,062 2,416,078 4,274,716 2,818,277 7,092,993
Due to related parties . - 191,888 191,888 - 191,888
Term loans 1,370,060 2,140,000 3,820,000 7,330,000 11,400,000 18,730,000
Murabaha payable 956,209 . 2,348,626 3,304,835 4,781,043 8,085,878
Provision for employees’

end of service benefits “ - - - 925,679 925,679
Totatl liahilities 6,901,647 3,271,062 8,776,592 18,949,191 19,924,899 38,874,090
Maturity profile of assets and liabilities at 31 December 2015:

Sub-total
Up to 1-3 312 Upto Over
1 month months months 1 year 1 year Total
KD KD KD KD KD KD

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3,755,890 3,551,750 - 7,307,640 - 7,307,640
Installment credit debtors 2,257,245 1,524,532 2,122,266 5,904,043 7,580,698 13,494,741
Investments ai fair value

through profit or loss 6,720,274 - - 6,720,274 - 6,720,274
Accounts receivable and

other assets 201,091 4,125,049 1,907,703 6,233,843 546,328 6,780,171
Due from related parties - - 676,801 676,801 - 676,801
Properties held for trading - - 1,313,047 1,313,247 - 1,313,047
Available for sale

investiments - - - - 91,673,129 91,673,129
Investment in associates - - - - 50,604,203 50,604,203
Investment in real estate

under development - - - - 4,108,650 4,108,650
Investment properiies - - - - 1,832,060 1,832,060
Property and equipment - - - - 3,396,711 3,396,711
Total assets 12,934,500 9,201,331 6,020,717 28,156,548 159,651,779 187,808,327
LIABILITIES
Due to banks 1,661,901 - - 1,661,901 - 1,661,901
Accounis payabie and

other liabilities 794,636 1,048,813 2,935,235 4,778,684 3,035,017 7,614,801
Lue to reiated parties - - 295,257 295,257 - 295,257
Term loans 170,000 1,090,000 3,030,000 4,290,000 8,480,000 12,770,000
Murabaha payable 432,580 - 2,337,740 2,770,320 8,053,218 10,823,538
Provision for employess'

end of service benefits - “ - - 805,014 805,014
Total liabilities 3,059,117 2,138,813 8,598,232 13,796,162 20,374,149 34,170,311
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

33 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)

334 Liquidity risk (continued)

The contractual maturity profile of the financial iabilities based on undiscounted cash flow is as follows:

Sub-total
Up to 1-3 3-12 Upto Over
1 month months months 1 year 1 year Total
KD KD KD KD KD KD
31 Becember 2016
Financial liabilities
Due to banks 3,861,833 . - 3,861,833 - 3,861,833
Accounts payable and other
liabilities 727,586 1,131,052 2,416,078 4,274,716 2,818,277 7,092,993
Due to related parties - . 191,888 191,888 - 191,888
Term loans 256,786 2,292,372 6,220,392 8,769,550 11,285,458 20,055,008
Murabaha payable 997,622 47,411 982,140 2,627,173 5,605,169 7,632,342
Provision for employess’ end
of service henefits - - - - 925,579 925,579
5,843,827 3,470,835 9,810,498 19,125,160 20,634,433 39,759,643
Sub-total
Upto 1-3 312 Upto Over
1 month months months 1 year 1 year Total
KD KD KD KD KD KD
31 December 2015
Financiai iiabilities
Due to banks 1,738,708 - . 1,738,708 . 1,738,708
Accounts payable and
other liabilities 794,636 1,048,813 2,935,235 4,778,684 3,035,017 7,814,601
Due to related parties - 295,257 295,257 - 295,257
Term loans 225,433 1,222,828 3,465,846 4,914,107 9,005,385 13,919,492
Murabaha payable 471,767 - 2,696,581 3,168,348 8,789,578 11,957,026
Provision for employees’
end of service benefits “ - - - 805,014 805,014
3,230,544 2,271,641 9,382,919 14,895,104 21,635,884 36,530,998
34 Fair value measurement

34.1  Fair value hierarchy

Fair value represents the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Financiat assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position are
grouped into three Levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three Levels are defined based on the observability of
significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:
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34 Fair value measurement (continued)
341  Fair value hierarchy {continued)

o Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or habilities;

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

34.2  Fair value measurement of financial instruments
The carrying amounts of the group’s financial assets and Labilities as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position may also be categorised as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.

2016 2015

KD KD
Financial assets:
Loans and receivables at amortised cost:
Cash and cash equivalents 10,103,829 7,307,640
Installments credit debtors 11,118,653 13,484,741
Accounts receivable and other assets 5,821,949 6,780,171
Due from related parties 1,104,711 676,801
Investments at fair value through profit or loss:
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 6,814,873 6,720,274
Available for sale investments:
Available for sale investments — at fair value 61,132,135 58,326,329
Available for sale investments — at cost 37,680,555 33,246,800
Total 133,776,805 126,552,756
Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
Due to banks 3,847,752 1,661,901
Accounts payable and other liabilities 7,092,993 7,814,601
Due to related parties 191,888 295,257
Term loans 18,730,000 12,770,000
Murabaha payable 8,085,878 10,823,638
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 925,579 805,014
Total 38,874,080 34,170,311

In the opinion of management, except for certain available for sale investments which are carried at cost for
reasons specified in note 17 to these consolidated financial statements, the carrying amounts of financial
assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2016 approximate their fair values.
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34 Fair value measurement (continued)

342  Fair value measurement of financial instruments (continued)
The level within which the financial asset or lability is classified is determined based on the lowest level of
significant input to the fair value measurement.

The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis in the consolidated statement of
financial position are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

31 December 2016

Level 1 lLevel 2 Level 3 Total

KD KD KD KD

investments at fair value through profit or
loss:
L.ocal quoted shares 830,399 - - 830,399
Foreign quoted shares 54,268 - . 54,268
Investment in managed porifolios 5,930,206 - - 5,930,206

Available for sale investments:

Local guoted shares 5,609,999 - - 5,609,999
Local unquoted shares - - 9,632,716 9,632,716
Foreign unquoted shares - - 14,361,555 14,361,555
investment in managed portfolios 19,854,058

- 11,463,200 31,317,258

Investment funds - 210,607 - 210,607

32,278,930 210,607 35,457,471 67,947,008
31 December 2015

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
KB KD KD KD

Investments at fair value through profit or
loss:
Local quoted shares 1,763,523 - - 1,763,523
Foreign quoted shares 69,040 - - 69,040
investment in managed portfolios 4,887,711 - - 4,887,711
Availabie for sale investments:
Local quoted shares 26,030,807 - - 26,030,807
Local unquoted shares - - 8,304,201 8,304,201

Foreign unquoted shares

- - 11,721,385 11,721,385
Investment in managed portfolios 1,412,303

- 10,581,000 12,003,303
Investment funds - 266,633 - 266,633
34,163,384 266,633 30,616,586 65,046,603

There have been no transfers between levels during the reporting period.

The valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs used in determining the fair value measurement
of level 2 and level 3 financial instruments, as well as the inter-relationship between key unobservable inputs
and fair value, are set out below.



Arzar Financial SGroup for Financing and Investiment - KPSQC G§
2 its Subsidiaries

Conseolidated Financial S{atements

31 December 208

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

34 Fair value measurement (continued)

34.2  Fair value measurement of financial instruments (continued)

Available for sale investments:

The group’s finance team performs valuations of financial items for financial reporting purposes, including
Level 3 fair values, in consultation with third party valuation specialists for complex valuations, where
required. Valuation techniques are selected based on the characteristics of each instrument, with the overall
objective of maximising the use of market-based information.

The valuation techniques used for instruments categorised in Levels 2 and 3 are described below:

Certain unquoted equity securities are valued based on book value and price to book multiple method using
latest financial statements available of the investee entities.

Other unquoted equity securities are valued using cash flow projections based on financial estimates
approved by senior management. The growth rates used to artive at the terminal value ranged from 2% to
3%. lfurther the revenue growth projections are based on the assessment of the future business growth,

Key assumptions wied in fair valve calculations

The calculation of fair value is most sensitive to the following assumptions:
*  Discount rates;
*  Growth rates used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the budget period;
= Local inflation rates.

Disconnt rates
Discount rates are calcuiated by using risk free rate, equity market risk premium, beta factor and company
specific risk premium (alpha factor).

Market share assumptions
These assumptions, as well as use of industry data for growth rates, are important as the entity’s relative
position to its competitors might change over the budget period.

Projected growth rates and local inflation rates
Assumptions are based on references from published industry research reports.

Investments in funds have been valued based on Net Asset Value (NAV) of the fund provided by the fund
mﬂnager.

Gains or losses recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year are included in profit
on sale of available for sale investments.

Changing inputs to the level 3 valuations to reasonably possible alternative assumptions would not change
significantly amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, total assets, total liabilities or
total equity.

There were no changes to the vajuation techniques during the year.

Level 3 fair value measurements

The group measurement of financial assets and liabilities classified in level 3 uses valuation techniques inputs
that are not based on observable market data. The finzncial instruments within this level can be reconciled
from beginning to ending balances‘as follows:
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34 Fair value measurement (continued)
34.2  Fair value measurement of financial instruments (continued)

Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)

31 Dec. 31 Dec.

2016 2015

KD KD
Opening balance 30,616,586 33,280,422
Change in fair value 4,840,885 (2,389,810)
Sales - (705,360)
Purchases - 421,334
Closing balance 35,457 471 30,616,586

Total amount included in consolidated statement of profit or loss for
unrealised gains on level 3 assets - -

Changing inputs to the level 3 valuations to reasonably possible alternative assumption would not change
significantly amounts recognised in profit or loss, total assets or total liabilities or total equity.

Non-financial instrurnents
Investment properties were fair valued at 31 December 2016 and are classified under level 3 fair value
hierarchy and reconciliation is provided in note 20.

Desctiption of significant unobservable inputs to valuation of non-financial assets:

Fair value of invesiment propetties were determined using Mark to Market method, conducted by valuators
considering transaction prices of the property and similar properties. The significant unobservable valuation
input used for the purpose of valuation is the market price per square foot / meter and varies from property
to property. A reasonable change in this input would result in an equivalent amount of change in fair value.

35 Capital risk management
The group’s capital management objectives are to ensure the group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to provide adequate return to its sharcholders through the optimisation of the capital structure.

The group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of changes in economic
conditions and risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the proup may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The capital structure of the group consists of the following:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2016 2015
KD KD
Due to banks (note 22) 3,847,752 1,661,901
Term loans {note 24) 18,730,000 12,770,000
Murabaha payable (note 25) 8,085,878 10,823,538
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 12) {10,103,929) (7,307,640)
Net debt 20,559,701 17,947,799
Equity 152,735,849 153,638,016
Net debt to equity ratio 13.46% 11.68%
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